
 

 

 
Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

Date: Monday, 15th September, 2008 

Time: 9.30 a.m. 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the 
meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Democratic Services Officer, 
Tel:01432 260 460 Fax:01432 261868 
E-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 
Herefordshire Council 

 

 



 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  15TH SEPTEMBER, 2008 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
To: Councillor RI Matthews (Chairman) 

Councillor KG Grumbley (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors CM Bartrum, WLS Bowen, JW Hope MBE, MAF Hubbard, TW Hunt, 

PM Morgan, A Seldon, NL Vaughan and PJ Watts 
 

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 
GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare 
against an Agenda item(s) the nature of an interest and whether the 
interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide first whether 
or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They 
will then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 
  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most 
other people in the area.  People in the area include those who live, work 
or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors will also have a 
personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an 
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other 
people in the area.  If they do have a personal interest, they must declare it 
but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   
 
Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each 
Councillor.  What Councillors have to do is ask themselves whether a 
member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think that the 
Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected 
by it.  If a Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what 
that interest is and leave the meeting room. 

 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 10  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2008.  
   



 
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY AND CARBON MANAGEMENT 

PERFORMANCE   
11 - 30  

   
 To review the Council’s performance against the corporate Environmental 

Strategy targets and to update the committee on the Council’s targets in 
relation to climate change and carbon management, with particular 
reference to the Council’s own carbon emissions. 

 

   
7. ENVIRONMENT: PERFORMANCE FOR THE FOUR-MONTH PERIOD 

TO JULY 2008   
31 - 58  

   
 To update Members on the progress towards achievement of targets for 

2008-09 relevant to the Environment Scrutiny Committee and contained 
within the Environment & Culture Directorate and the Regeneration 
Directorate. 

 

   
8. SCRUTINY REVIEW OF PLANNING SERVICES - UPDATE   59 - 60  
   
 To seek an extension of time to report on the findings of the Scrutiny 

Review. 
 

   
9. ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   61 - 64  
   
 To consider the Committee work programme.  
   
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 

 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee held at :The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford on Monday, 9 June 2008 at 9.30 a.m. 
  

Present: Councillor RI Matthews (Chairman) 
Councillor  KG Grumbley (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: CM Bartrum, WLS Bowen, JHR Goodwin, JW Hope MBE, 

MAF Hubbard, TW Hunt, PM Morgan, A Seldon and PJ Watts 
 

  
In attendance: Councillors PJ Edwards, TM James, JG Jarvis (Cabinet Member 

Environment and Strategic Housing), AT Oliver, J Stone and 
DB Wilcox (Cabinet Member Highways and Transportation) 

  
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 There were no apologies. 
  
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
  
 There were no named substitutes. 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 No declarations of interest were made. 
  
4. MINUTES   
  
 RESOLVED: That subject to recording that Councillor CM Bartrum had been in 

attendance the minutes of the meeting held 31 March 2008 be approved and 
signed by the Chairman. 

  
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 

SCRUTINY   
  
 No suggestions were received from members of the public. 
  
6. PRESENTATION BY CABINET MEMBER (ENVIRONMENT AND STRATEGIC 

HOUSING)   
  
 The Committee received an oral presentation by the Cabinet Member (Environment 

and Strategic Housing) who commented on: the achievement or areas for 
improvement in the past year in his programme area, as it related to this Committee, 
what needed to be addressed in the coming year and indicated issues he may wish 
to involve Scrutiny in.  
 
The Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing) briefly described: the 
highlights from 2007-08; performance, and the challenges to be faced. 
 
He also commented on future work for scrutiny, not necessarily this committee, and 
highlighted the review of planning services, being a later agenda item.  He also 
referred to the wider issues and purpose of regeneration and how this related to the 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

sub national review of economic development and the evolving role of Advantage 
West Midlands.  He further referred to the need to ensure that the growth point 
status delivered sustainable communities and provided an appropriate mix of 
housing and employment in high quality environments and were well served by a 
choice of transportation. 
 
During the presentation and subsequent debate the following principal points or 
comments were noted: 
 

• The Committee congratulated the Service on the successful outcome from 
the Cadburys court case. 

• In conjunction with the police spot checks and follow-up action was 
undertaken in relation to enforcing alcohol licensing, which included sales 
through supermarkets. 

• The Cabinet Member acknowledged that the provision of recent information 
on the proposed Butter Market Refurbishment scheme may have been 
fragmented.   A meting would be held later in the week to agree the Lead 
Cabinet Member and a team to progress the scheme.  Further information 
would be provided to Members and to a future meeting of the Committee. 

• The Cabinet Member commented that the emerging Regional Spatial 
Strategy indicated that 16,600 new homes should be built in Herefordshire in 
the period 2006-2026.  If the County were unable to meet any extended 
target then evidence would need to be provided through the Local 
Development Framework. 

• Herefordshire was recycling 30% of its waste against the Government target 
of 40% by 2010.  Public consultation – including web-blogs - was underway 
about continuing the weekly residual waste (back bags) collection and 
proposal to change recycling collections to fortnightly, where possible by 
wheeled bin.   The Government target related to weight and therefore 
wheeled bin would enable mixed recyclables, including glass, to be collected.  
While a wider range of materials could be sorted via a comingled process, 
issues still remained in finding an end market for the sorted material.  
Discussions had been on going with Envirobility on how to diversify or 
integrate the successful scheme covering the Ross-on-Wye area. A Members 
seminar on waste had been held earlier in the year and the Cabinet Member 
invited Members to consult with their Parish Councils to ensure that as much 
input could be given to future debate. 

• Questioned on the ‘waste to power’ option the Committee noted that 
discussions were ongoing concerning letting and delivering the new waste 
collection contract. 

• The Committee noted that the Council had no responsibility towards 
commercial waste. The Council had undertaken a trial recycling scheme of 
glass from public houses, however, this had been stopped due to continual 
problems with sorting the various glass types.  The Cabinet Member agreed 
that the recycling of commercial waste needed to be addressed by central 
government.   

• Responding to comments regarding the restricted opening of household 
waste bring sites the Cabinet Member responded that many of the sites had 
limited opening due to planning restrictions. 

• The Committee noted that after a number of years in trying to establish a 
baseline energy usage by Council premises a firmer position had been 
established.  It was also noted that the contract for ‘green electric’ had been 
cancelled. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing for 
his presentation and comments on his programme area. 

2



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

  
7. PRESENTATION BY CABINET MEMBER (HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION)   
  
 The Committee received a PowerPoint presentation by the Cabinet Member 

(Highways and Transportation) who commented on: the achievement or areas for 
improvement in the past year in his programme area, what needed to be addressed 
in the coming year and indicated issues in which he may wish to involve Scrutiny. 
Copies of the presentation were made available at the meeting and a copy has been 
entered in the Committee minute book. 
 
The Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) gave a brief overview of the 
Highways and Transportation Service; achievements in 2007/08; funding and work 
both underway and for the future.   
 
During the presentation and subsequent debate the following principal points or 
comments were noted: 

• Key indicators showed an improvement to the condition of principal and non-
principal roads.  Cycling had also increased.  The Cabinet Member 
expressed disappointment that the number of ‘killed and seriously injured 
traffic casualties’ had risen against last year.  He also commented that a fine 
balance was needed between expenditure on both principal and non-principal 
roads, which ensured continued government support, and expenditure on  
unclassified roads which also required considerable maintenance.  Current 
funding was limited to maintain the 2000 miles of road in the County and this 
made it difficult to meet the demands for adequate maintenance on un-
classified roads. 

• While the Local Transport Plan provided the bulk of the funding other funding 
streams were pursued whenever opportunities arose. 

• Responding to questions on the working relationship with the Highways 
Agency and possible detrunking of the A49 and A645, the Cabinet Member 
responded that he was currently seeking a meeting with the new Regional 
Director of the Highways Agency to discuss issues.  The Agency had offered 
to detrunk the A465 but the conditions were currently not acceptable to the 
Council and the situation had to be looked at in conjunction with the Welsh 
Assembly. Currently the Agency were not offering to detrunk the A49.  The 
Agency’s maintenance priorities were still focused on motorways and major 
accident black spots in the region.  

• Questioned on whether the increase in cycling could be attributed to 
work/school trips the Committee were informed that fixed ‘counting points’ 
were used. While they provided reliable data it was not possible to determine 
the destination of the cycle trip.  Further work was underway with Children’s 
Services to try to ascertain any increase in cycling to school.  

• The Cabinet Member emphasised that every casualty or death was one too 
many and in liaison with the police every incident was investigated.  He 
undertook to provide a further break down of the accident statistics. 

• The Cabinet Member commented that major consultation would be 
undertaken on the Hereford Outer Distributor Road proposal .  The results of 
a submission to the West Midlands Regional Assembly for their support 
would be known in late summer.  This subject would no doubt be debated in 
future meetings.  A view was expressed that local Members and Parish 
Councils should be kept informed and closely involved. 

• The replacement of Colwall Railway Bridge by Network Rail was expected to 
start in spring of next year.  The Councils contribution towards costs would 
not be known until a detailed design had been agreed. 

• The Rotherwas Access Road was expected to be open in the next 2 to 3 
weeks. The date of the official opening by AWM had yet to be announced.  

3



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

• Responding to a question concerning progress with the Leominster Relief 
Road the Cabinet Member reported that a report from Leominster Town 
Council had just been received and was being appraised officers. 

• Questioned on the justification for splitting Transportation and Highways the 
Cabinet Member responded that transportation encompassed the strategic 
element and, combined with planning, could contribute to the many planning 
policy objectives.  Highways dealt with the management, maintenance and 
operation of the road network. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) for his 
presentation and comments on his programme area. 

  
8. REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURE   
  
 The Committee received a report on how the Environment Directorate (now the 

Environment and Culture Directorate) had performed against the Directorate Plan 
and performance targets and were informed of issues for the future. 
 
The Director of Environment and Culture (formerly Director of Environment) reported 
that there were continuing financial pressures on budgets arising from the need to 
meet inflationary uplifts on non-staff costs and gave the example that the 
construction industry inflation figure was at 12%.  The review of the Amey contract 
was therefore critical to service delivery and cost management for future years. 
 
He reported that the Directorate/Improvement Plan could be set out under four 
headings and commented that: 

1. Customers – there was a need to ensure that services were representative of 
the wishes of the public and met the targets set.  This needed to be 
monitored e.g. through the Satisfaction Survey, and addressed if necessary. 

2. Reputation – the Council needed to ensure that areas of good practice was 
known about and shared.  Further promoting the County as a good place to 
live and work would also help with staff recruitment and morale. 

3. Value for Money – benchmarking against similar authorities would continue to 
ensure that a cost effective quality service was provided.  The issue of 
sustainability should also be considered, on which this authority was leading 
the way. 

4. Staff – most staff lived in the County and therefore were also users or 
customers of the service.  Staff were encouraged to participate in staff 
opinion surveys. 

 
On a general note he emphasised the need to both discuss and deliver projects with 
the Council’s partners.  He also commented on the need to identify assets and 
integrate services to ensure that they provided the right service in a timely efficient 
way.  
 
Questioned on his comment regarding ensuring that the Herefordshire Council logo 
was given due prominence, he clarified that whenever or wherever the Council had 
been involved in a project or funding then the Council’s part in that project should be 
made known to the public.  
 
Clarifying the comment on sustainability in relation to Value for Money the 
Committee noted that while financial, social and economic issues were automatically 
considered within projects the Council were actively looking to extend this to include 
sustainability issues.   
 
Responding to a comment regarding the loss of continuity, particularly when staff left 
the Council, the Director of Environment and Culture acknowledged that this had 

4



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

been an issue, particularly in highways, however, this was being addressed.  Amey 
also wished to ensure that local issues were addressed and therefore were keen to 
engage with Parish Councils. 
 
In answer to a question concerning contract inflation the Director of Environment and 
Culture explained that it was common for contracts to be linked to a rate of inflation 
of which there were many methods of calculation.  Many environment contracts were 
linked to the construction industry method of calculation which, due to the high 
demand for steel and concrete in places like China and India and the increasing 
Olympic effect, meant that costs were high. 
 
Returning to Value for Money a point was made that the Council needed to ensure 
that tenders and contracts were properly specified and monitored to ensure that over 
inflated prices were not being paid. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Director of Environment and Culture for his report. 
 

  
9. REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION   
  
 The Director of Regeneration gave a brief overview of how the new Directorate 

would contribute to the aims and ambitions of the Council, within the terms of 
reference of this Committee. 
 
The Director of Regeneration reported that the establishment of the new 
Council/Primary Care Trust management team and structure had resulted in the 
establishment of the Regeneration Directorate.  This reflected the growing need to 
bring together a range of service that supported the economic life and regeneration 
of the County.  He highlighted the range of current and emerging central and 
regional government policies which needed to be addressed, particularly in the areas 
of planning; transportation and housing.  The Directorate now provided a number of 
cross portfolio holder services and this would ensure that Cabinet Members; 
Directors and staff provided co-ordinated outcomes. 
 
He outlined a number of priority areas including: working with stakeholders/partners 
in raising the profile of the County at regional level to secure additional funding; 
ensuring growth without damaging the assets of the County; ensuring that new 
housing was in the right place thereby contributing to communities and supporting 
schools.  Work would continue on projects such as the Rotherwas Futures and the 
Widemarsh improvements/ESG scheme. 
 
The new Directorate would comprise of a Head of Planning and Transportation; a 
Head of Economic and Community Services and a Head of Strategic Housing. The 
underlying structures in the Directorate were subject to review.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Director of Regeneration for his report. 
 
At this point the Committee adjourned for 5 minutes and reconvened at 11.59am. 

  
10. REVIEW OF THE SERVICE DELIVERY PARTNERSHIP WITH AMEY WYE 

VALLEY LTD - UPDATE   
  
 The Committee received an update on progress with the review of the Council’s 

Service Delivery Partnership with Amey Wye Valley Ltd. 
 
Committee Members received a copy of a report to be presented to Strategic 
Monitoring Committee on 13 June 2008 covering Phase 2 of the Service Delivery 

5



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

Review which had been produced since publication of the Environment Committee 
agenda. 
 
The Acting Head of Highways and Transportation reminded Members that the aim of 
the project was to review the Council’s approach to delivering services through the 
existing Service Delivery Partnership and to identify a preferred option to ensure that 
the Council can deliver a better service for less cost.  The review was commissioned 
to examine alternative forms of service delivery with a view to identifying an 
approach for the future that would meet the objectives of: securing annual savings to 
the Council of a minimum of £1 million and improving current quality and levels of 
service.  He reported that the first phase of the review had been completed namely 
identifying possible approaches to service delivery and a set of criteria against which 
the options could be shortlisted.  The second phase had considered the shortlisted 
options in more detail to identify a model for future implementation in Herefordshire. 
The Phase 2 report examined the potential future partnership between Herefordshire 
Council and Amey through the analysis of the identified models described in detail in 
the report. In summary these were: 

• Improved business as usual which would look to improving the current 
agreement with extra bonus and penalty payments; 

• Implementing a managing agent contract that would shift the partnership 
interface to give a greater responsibility for planning to Amey; 

• Implement a managing agent type model but with services delivered by an 
organisation staffed by employees of both Amey and Herefordshire Council 
and managed by a single manager reporting to both organisations. 

 
The Committee were informed that Amey were being very cooperative in jointly 
reviewing the contract. At this early stage in the review the ‘total estimated savings’ 
indicated in the report were only estimates and could not be guaranteed.  
 
The Committee noted that the report would be considered by Strategic Monitoring 
Committee and that any comments should be directed to the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman to raise at that Committee. 
 
The Director of Environment and Culture emphasised that this was a Council 
contract being reviewed by the Council.  Any issues needed to be raised at an early 
stage so that they could be addressed during the review as the Council would have 
to work with the resultant revised contract.  
 
RESOLVED That the current position set out in the report to Strategic 
Monitoring Committee and further out lined above be noted and Members 
agreed to refer any questions or comments to the Chairman or Vice-Chairman 
for discussion at Strategic Monitoring Committee on 13 June 2008. 
 

  
11. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITOIRNG   
  
 The Committee were advised on the final outturn position for the 2007/08 

Environment Capital Programme and the proposed programme for 2008/09. 
 
The Committee were advised that the total of the Capital Programme had slightly 
increased to £27,599,000 from the figure of £27,586,000 reported to the previous 
meeting.  Brief details of the net increase were set out in the agenda report together 
with the final outturn position set out at appendix 1 to the report.   
 
The proposed Capital Programme for 2008/09, attached to the report at appendix 2, 
indicated the budget had increased to £19,949,000 from the original budget included 
in the Medium Term Financial Management Strategy of £16,203,000.  This increase 

6



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

related to net additions due to slippage in the 2007/08 programme; an additional 
allocation for enhancements to High Street, Hereford, of £751,000 and various costs 
(£1,390,000) associated with the Rotherwas Access Road. 
 
On scrutinising the report the following principal points or comments were noted: 
 

• Concern was raised regarding an apparent mismatch in the use of the 
budgets.  It was suggested that greater emphasis had been placed on vehicle 
related budgets, hence many of the overspends, in favour of the people 
related budgets e.g. underspends in footway and cycle related budgets, and 
that this was contra to the Local Transport Plan. The Acting Head of 
Highways and Transportation acknowledged that due to the July 07 floods a 
number of schemes in the programme had been delayed and the budgets 
had been adjusted accordingly.   Overall, under the direction of the Cabinet 
Member and the Director of Environment and Culture, the programme had 
been adjusted to make best use of the capital allocation.   

• Responding to a comment that the investment was not alleviating the gridlock 
in the City, the Acting Head of Highways and Transportation informed the 
Committee that evidence from local surveys indicated that both cycle and 
public transport usage had risen.  The congestion issue was taken seriously 
and both the Park and Ride scheme and an intelligent transport scheme were 
contained in the LTP.    

• Questioned on the additional allocation (£751,000) for enhancements to High 
Street, Hereford, the Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) 
informed the Committee that the improvement works to High Town, 
undertaken during 2007, had also included works to Widemarsh Street.  
However, at the request of a number of traders those works had not been 
undertaken at that time.  While the intention had been to undertake 
improvements to Widemarsh Street to create an integrated streetscene to link 
to the ESG within the current financial year, he warned that, to ensure a 
consistent use of materials etc, the improvement programme may slip to the 
2009/10 financial year. 

• Asked to clarify the increase in costs of the Rotherwas Access Road the 
Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) reported that while some 
elements had been covered by the contingency fund in the contract e.g. work 
due to the Rotherwas Ribbon, other unforeseen works, such as necessary 
adaptations to accommodate utility works, needed to be funded. 

• Questioned on the underspend on rail improvements the Committee noted 
that improvement schemes were intended for Hereford, Ledbury and 
Leominster stations, however, progress had been delayed due to 
negotiations with the rail authority. 

 
The Director of Environment and Culture concluded by commenting that with the 
number of schemes underway a number of delays were almost inevitable and 
therefore schemes or budgets were re-profiled to make best use of the available 
capital resource. 
 
 RESOLVED: That 

a) The position as set out in the Capital Budget Monitoring report be 
noted; and 

b) The Committee regrets the continual underspends on sustainable 
transport budgets, particularly cycling initiatives, as opposed to 
overspends on car management and road building. The Committee 
requests that all officers delivering the Local Transport Plan should 
make every effort to ensure that budgets for sustainable modes of 
transport will be fully committed in 2008/9. 

7



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

  
12. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING   
  
 The Committee were advised of the final revenue outturn position for Environment 

for 2007/08 and the agreed budget for 2008/09 and the emerging budget pressures. 
 
The Director of Resources representative reported that in overall terms the 
Environment Directorate overspent by £60,000, which represented a variance of 
0.2% against the agreed budget. This excluded £360,000 the Directorate met as part 
of the unfunded element of the damage caused by the July 2007 floods.  Brief details 
of the main overspends (or underspends) were set out in the agenda report. 
 
On scrutinising the report the following principal points or comments were noted: 
 

• The Head of Planning Services confirmed there was no specific budget for 
any legal costs incurred in relation to appeals to planning decisions.  This 
may be an issue the proposed scrutiny review of the planning service would 
need to look into. (See following agenda item). 

• In view of the general down turn in the housing market it was questioned 
whether the expected increase in planning fee income (£200,000) could be 
realised.  The Head of Planning Services responded that both the number of 
developer applications and the availability of mortgages had a bearing on the 
number of developer or home improvement applications. The position would 
be closely monitored and further reported later in the financial year.   

• In view of the large underspend (£917,000) in Environmental Health and 
Trading Standards budget the Committee sought assurances that all 
elements of the service were being adequately provided.  The Head of 
Environmental Health and Trading Services reported that a high level of 
service was being provided.  A major contributor to the underspend had been 
the continued standstill on the Waste Disposal contract; additional fee income 
from the Cadbury’s court case and unbudgeted grant from the Food 
Standards Agency.  

• The Committee noted that the ‘Winter Maintenance’ budget (£510,000 
overspend) had been used to account for the unexpected additional 
expenditure arising from the July 07 floods which the Council had been 
unable to claim under the Belwin scheme.  The Committee questioned 
whether an appropriate maintenance budget had been set for an ‘average 
winter’. 

• The Committee noted a suggestion by the Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation) that increased usage in one area e.g. Concessionary Travel 
(£33,000 overspend) could result in an effect in another budget e.g. reduced 
income (£95,000) on car parking. 

 
RESOLVED: That the position set out in the Revenue Budget Monitoring report 
be noted. 

  
13. SCRUTINY REVIEW OF PLANNING SERVICES   
  
 The Committee considered both the principle of a review of the Council’s Planning 

Service and its terms of reference. 
 
The Chairman apologised for the haste with which the item, and the appointment of 
members, was considered at the previous meeting.  Written terms of reference were 
now available in the agenda which the Committee considered. 
 
The Vice –Chairman suggested two changes at paragraph 9 namely that at the 4th 

8



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 9 JUNE 2008 

 

 

bullet point the word ‘ability’ be changed to ‘resources’ and at bullet point 7 ‘process’ 
be changed to the plural. 
 
The Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing) commented in relation to 
the 1st bullet point that the Service needed to move to being an enabler service. 
Ideally the completion of the review should coincide with that of the Local 
Development Framework. 
 
The Committee debated a suggestion to invite HALC (Herefordshire Association of 
Local Councils) to put forward a representative to serve on the review team.  The 
Committee decided not to seek a representative but emphasised that HALC/ Parish 
& Town Councils should be given ample opportunity to input evidence to the review 
as set out in the terms of reference. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That  

a) subject to incorporating the two amendments detailed above the terms 
of reference be agreed; and  

b) the membership of the Planning Service Review Group to be 
Councillors: PA Andrews (Chair); CM Bartrum; WLS Bowen; PM 
Morgan; JB Williams; PJ Watts and RI Matthews as ex-officio member. 

  
14. ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   
  
 The Committee noted the work programme. 

 
Resolved that the Committee work Programme be endorsed and reported to 
Strategic Monitoring Committee. 

  
The meeting ended at 1.00 p.m. CHAIRMAN 

  
 

9



10



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE         15 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Sustainability Manager, on 261930   

 

 

Envstrategyandcarbonmanagementreport0.doc  

 ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGY AND CARBON 
MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE  

Report from:  Director of Environment & Culture 

 

Wards affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To review the Council’s performance against the corporate Environmental Strategy 
targets and to update the committee on the Council’s targets in relation to climate 
change and carbon management, with particular reference to the Council’s own 
carbon emissions. 

Financial implications  

2. The Environment Strategy includes the Council’s carbon management targets. There 
is a strong link between cost and carbon emissions, which mainly relate to use of 
fuel, electricity and gas. There is strong upward pressure on energy prices which will 
put pressure on budgets across the Council during the coming and future years. This 
will affect all council directorates and schools. 

Risk Management 

3. The Council now leads on the Herefordshire Partnership Local Area Agreement 
target to cut county carbon emissions by 4.9% over 3 years. There is increasing 
public interest in the council’s management of its own emissions and its performance 
against its 2005 Nottingham Declaration target of a 20% reduction by 2020 (an 
average of 1.25% per year). This has been highlighted by critical coverage in the 
Hereford Times on 28th August of the council’s performance. 

4. There is increasing international and national pressure to act swiftly to reduce carbon 
emissions because of the scientific consensus that deep cuts in carbon must be 
made urgently to avoid irreversible changes to our climate and environment. 

Considerations 

5. The Environmental Strategy report for 2007/08, included as Appendix 1 to this report, 
shows strong performance overall on our targets, particularly in the areas of waste 
management, air pollution control, biodiversity, supporting environmental 
management within the Council and local businesses, provision of planning services, 
and EcoSchools. Areas where objectives were not met include the number of 
reported cycle trips and use of buses by the public and dealing with abandoned 
vehicles.   

6. The Council’s ISO 14001 triennial renewal visit in July went well and the council has 
retained corporate certification for all unitary council functions to the international 
management standard. Options for rolling ISO 14001 out to the PCT are being 

AGENDA ITEM 6

11



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE         15 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Sustainability Manager, on 261930   

 

 

Envstrategyandcarbonmanagementreport0.doc  

explored. However our external certifiers raised one non-conformity: for the second 
visit in a row this related to the Council’s approach to reducing its own carbon 
emissions.  

7. The new National Indicator set, in place from April 2008, includes new Environmental 
Sustainability Indicators on which all Councils must report annually. On climate 
change there are now Indicators for the council’s own emissions (NI185), county 
emissions (NI186), both co-ordinated by the Sustainability Unit, adaptation of council 
services to climate change, eg extreme weather (NI 188) led by the Director of 
Environment & Culture. Other indicators relevant to climate change include fuel 
poverty (on which Strategic Housing lead) and flooding (Director of Environment & 
Culture leads). 

8. Herefordshire’s Local Area Agreement has set 3 year targets both for reducing 
carbon emissions in the county and for improving the condition of Special Wildlife 
Sites (the national indicator on biodiversity), on which Conservation (Regeneration) 
lead.  

9. Over 100 councils have adopted targets against the NI 186 county indicator in their 
Local Area Agreements. Herefordshire’s target is an overall 13.1% reduction in 
county per capita carbon emissions over 3 years. Of this 8.1% is due to be delivered 
by national programmes and 4.9% is deemed to be under the influence of the 
Council. The main areas covered by the target are the emissions from business and 
public sector, domestic housing and road transport. There is a concern that although 
this indicator has been adopted as a priority within the Local Area Agreement, 
resources have yet to be allocated for its delivery. Preparatory work on the approach 
to this wide-ranging target has begun and will be reported to a future meeting.  

10.  The Council’s current carbon emissions inventory for its own operations (Appendix 
2) shows a small reduction in emissions (1.25%) from March 2005 to March 2008. 
This is below the target set in 2005 and included in the Corporate Plan 2007-10. 
There are considerable fluctuations from year to year in the extensive data set which 
underpins this calculation; these are not yet fully understood. 

11. The figures currently available for 2007/08 show that the Council emits at least 
17,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide a year. This inventory does not yet include 
emissions from social care contracted transport, vehicles owned by the council and 
buildings and transport operated on our behalf by our contractors. On the current 
figure the Council needs to make reductions of over 200 tonnes of carbon dioxide per 
year to meet its 1.25% target. The current Action Plan does not include estimates of 
actions’ impact on emissions and is not sufficient to meet this target.   

Background 

12. The Environmental Strategy, passed in June 2005, enables people to get an 
overview of our performance against our key environmental commitments. It is due 
for review later this year and will be updated to more accurately reflect the council’s 
current commitments and targets, to ensure all entries are quantifiable, to make 
reference to the new national indicators, and to include priority topics identified in the 
Staff Sustainability Opinion Survey. 

13. Steep rises in utilities prices are expected in the coming year as utility contracts are 
relet. West Mercia Supplies, our utility partners, have alerted us to expected price 
rises. In their summer newsletter they note that gas prices have risen by 100% and 

12



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE         15 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Sustainability Manager, on 261930   

 

 

Envstrategyandcarbonmanagementreport0.doc  

electricity by 32% since the current contract price was set. Fuel prices for vehicles 
have also risen significantly in the last few months. Although prices may fall back for 
a period the trend in price for these finite resources is expected to continue to rise.  

14. The Council spends significant amounts of money on energy and fuel. In 2007/08 just 
under £2.5 million was coded to electricity, gas, oil, solid fuel, LPG and vehicle fuel 
for direct expenditure in council buildings (including schools) and vehicles. The major 
contributors are: heating oil £109K, vehicle fuel £119K, gas £570K and electricity 
£1.65 million. The council also spends significant amounts indirectly on utilities and 
fuel via contractors working directly on our behalf: these sums have not yet been 
quantified. 

15.  The effect of price rises in utilities and fuel will be felt in all directorates. An example 
is street lighting, who currently budget £255,000 for powering street lights, illuminated 
bollards and signs from a green source: prices are anticipated to rise from 6.478p a 
unit to over 10p a unit when this contract is relet in Spring 2009. National research 
published by the LGA in July found that in 2006/2007, councils spent £541 million on 
fuel costs to run vehicles such as their rubbish bin fleets, gritters and meals on 
wheels vans. In this financial year (April 2008 – March 2009), it is expected that 
should fuel prices stay at the same level as they are currently, then it will cost £780 
million to provide the services.  

16. Schools make up a significant fraction of the Council’s emissions from property. 
Schools are included in the council utility contracts but pay their own bills; they are 
likely to be hard hit by utility price rises over the coming winter. Timely consideration 
of help and advice they could be offered on options for low cost and longer-term 
energy saving measures would be helpful.  

17. The LGA have just brought out guidance "Cutting Through the Green Tape, the 
Powers Councils have to tackle Climate Change” which highlights the considerable 
powers that local authorities have at their disposal to tackle climate change, for both 
mitigation and adaptation activity. The report includes several case studies, including 
Islington, which has set up a Climate Change capital fund of £3 million for capital 
projects that reduce carbon dioxide emissions and costs through the borough as part 
of their Local Area Agreement’s Climate Change Partnership.   

18. The LGA report also highlights Energy Saving Trust guidance that councils should 
dedicate a member of staff to energy management for each £1 million energy spend, 
and that 10% of council’s energy expenditure should be spent on energy efficiency. 
This is not currently the case, which may be a contributory factor to our failure to 
meet our reduction target.    

Response to reducing council carbon emissions 

19. A progress report on the Council’s carbon management from 2005 – March 2008 is 
now on the website The Council has undertaken a number of initiatives to increase 
awareness and reduce emissions. A new flare was installed this spring at Stretton 
Sugwas landfill site to reduce methane emissions, which are 21 times more 
damaging to the atmosphere than CO2. The MY Energy programme has engaged 
council staff in low cost and no-cost measures to reduce consumption in their 
buildings and has provided incentives for staff to undertake measures at home.  The 
Steps to Sustainability programme lays out both positive steps the public can take 
and the council’s measures in place. A Local Climate Impacts Profile is currently 

13



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE         15 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Sustainability Manager, on 261930   

 

 

Envstrategyandcarbonmanagementreport0.doc  

underway to investigate the council’s vulnerability to future extreme weather by 
tracking responses to past events. 

20. The Council do not face this issue alone as 85% of councils have now included one 
or more targets relating to climate change in their Local Area Agreements. Many 
Councils have already achieved substantial and sustained reductions in their 
emissions and there are Energy Agencies well positioned locally to provide support. 
Some external funding is available, though this usually requires match funding that is 
not currently available within the Council. West Mercia Supplies are interested in 
working with us to develop an Invest to Save mechanism allowing buildings and 
schools to upgrade their energy performance and repay the investment through their 
energy bills. Mechanisms exist to factor carbon pricing into financial and other 
decisions: the Government are currently using a price of £26 per tonne of CO2, set 
last December.  

21. A strategic look at Council emissions is needed so that carbon reductions can be 
built into Directorate and Service Plans. The first priority is to establish the council’s 
exposure, both in terms of emissions and costs. This data will build an improved 
Emission Inventory, which will form the 2008/09 baseline for NI185, due for 
completion next summer. The data sets already identified show considerable 
variation from year to year. Further work is thus likely to be needed to establish what 
is causing fluctuations and identify the most effective approaches to achieving 
consistent reductions in emissions over the next decade.  

22. This work should include careful scrutiny of capital spend and contracts to ensure 
that high standards of energy efficiency are built in to reduce future running costs.  
Contractors should be invited to work with us to achieve the reductions required for 
mutual benefit. Officers in Property, CYPD, Risk Management and Social Care are all 
likely to play a significant role in this work. Work to develop an Invest to Save 
mechanism is also critical and would be particularly useful to schools. 

23. Next summer, when the baseline is in place and the numbers and the options for 
action have been evaluated, it would be prudent to revisit the internal 1.25% target, 
which is currently below the 1.6% target (4.9% over 3 years) we are aiming to 
achieve in the wider county and consider the savings profile. It will also be important 
to decide our approach to landfill emissions, which are not currently within NI186 or 
NI 185, but are the Council’s highest single source of emissions. 

24. The need is to determine and deliver an evidence-based long-term carbon 
management and reduction programme that will meet our emissions targets for our 
own activities, reduce our exposure to price increases and play our part in leading 
local efforts to combat climate change. Further resources dedicated to this work 
should see multiple payoffs economically, socially and financially. 

RECOMMENDATION  

THAT:  The report be noted, subject to any comments Members may wish to make 
to the Cabinet Member, Environment and Strategic Housing. 

Attachments 

q Appendix 1: Environment Strategy 2007-2008 performance report  

q Appendix 2: Council Carbon Emissions Inventory 2004-08 

14



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE         15 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Sustainability Manager, on 261930   

 

 

Envstrategyandcarbonmanagementreport0.doc  

 

Consultees for this report 

q Head of Asset Management and Property Services, Environment Accountant, 
Systems Accountant, Highways Network Manager 

Background papers 

q Council Carbon Management Action Plan report 2005-08 
(http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/docs/CMAP_Report_0508_.pdf)  

q NI186 figures for Herefordshire emissions 
(http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/docs/Herefordshire_Emissions_Graph_2005.pdf) 

15



16



D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
8

/8
/0

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
R

A
F

T
  

1

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 S

e
c

ti
o

n
s

W
a

s
te

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

E
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 C
li

m
a

te
N

a
tu

ra
l 

&
 B

u
il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

R
is

k
s
 &

 P
o

ll
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

W
o

rk
in

g

h
T

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

1
3

th

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i

ts
e

lf
 i

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
b

 a
t 

 ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l_

S
tr

a
te

g
y
_

S
u

m
m

a
ry

_
-_

1
2

-0
8

.p
d

f

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

s
 o

f 
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
8

. 
 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/d

o
c
s
/E

n
v

17



W
a
s
te

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
2

0
0

5
/0

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
D

e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 

B
V

 8
4
a
 &

 b
 

J
M

W
S

 T
a

rg
e

t 
2

 
5

2
1

.7
k
g

 
5

0
5

.7
6
k
g

 
4

8
3

.3
3
k
g

 
D

e
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 p
e

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
e

n
e
ra

te
d

 t
ra

d
e

 
w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

re
c
y
c
le

d
) 

G
E

M
(3

2
8

,6
0

0
/1

4
8

0
)

=
2

2
2

 k
g

 

(2
5

5
,5

9
0

/1
4

0
0

)
 =

 1
8
2
.6

k
g

A
w

a
it
in

g
d

a
ta

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

n
n
a

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 s

e
n

t 
to

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll 

B
V

 8
2
d
 (

i)
 &

 (
ii)

 
7
6
.1

1
%

7
2
.8

6
%

6
9
.5

7
%

D
e

c
re

a
s

e
 t

h
e

 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

a
s

te
 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll

 
D

e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

tr
a

d
e

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n

t 
to

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

G
E

M
2

7
1

.1
T

o
n

n
e
s
 

2
0

4
.7

4
to

n
n

e
s
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
d

a
ta

In
c
re

a
s
e

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 

B
V

 8
2
a
 (

i)
 &

 (
ii)

 
J
M

W
S

 T
a

rg
e

t 
4

 
1
7
.3

1
%

1
8
.7

%
2
2
.8

0
%

In
c
re

a
s
e

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 c

o
m

p
o

s
te

d
 

B
V

 8
2
b
 (

i)
 &

 (
ii)

 
J
M

W
S

 T
a

rg
e

t 
5

 
J
M

W
S

 T
a

rg
e

t 
1

 
J
M

W
S

 T
a

rg
e

t 
6

 

6
.5

8
%

7
.3

6
%

7
.6

3
%

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 
re

c
y
c

le
d

 o
r 

c
o

m
p

o
s

te
d

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
e

n
e
ra

te
d

 t
ra

d
e

 
w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

s
c
h

e
m

e

G
E

M
5

7
.5

to
n

n
e
s
 

5
6

.4
9

to
n

n
e
s
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
d

a
ta

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

s
e

rv
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 

B
V

 9
1
 

J
M

W
S

 T
a

rg
e

t 
3

 
6
2
.2

8
%

6
8
.0

%
7
3
.0

%

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

s
 w

it
h

 
a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 

G
E

M
3

7
 O

ff
ic

e
s
 

s
e

rv
e
d

 
A

ll 
o

ff
ic

e
s
 

n
o

w
 s

e
rv

e
d

 
A

ll 
o

ff
ic

e
s
 

n
o

w
 s

e
rv

e
d

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it

h
 a

c
c

e
s
s

 t
o

 
re

c
y
c

li
n

g
 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
o

f 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o
s
a

l 
p
e

r 
to

n
n

e
 

B
V

8
6

B
V

8
7

£
4

4
.6

9

£
7

8
.9

9

£
4

7
.0

3

£
7

9
.0

9

£
5

5
.0

1

£
8

6
.4

8

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

2

18



T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

3

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

a
lk

in
g

 o
r 

c
y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
a
t 

s
c
h
o
o

ls
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n
 S

R
T

S
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 w
it
h
 A

d
o
p
te

d
 S

c
h
o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 (

to
 b

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 t

o
 ‘
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

e
re

fo
rd

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 t

ra
v
e
l 
p
la

n
s
’)
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 r
ig

h
t 

o
f 

w
a

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
ts

 u
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
(p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
le

n
g
th

s
 o

f 
ri
g
h
t 

o
f 

w
a

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a
 t

h
a

t 
a
re

 e
a
s
y
 t

o
 

u
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p

u
b
lic

) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
y
c
lin

g
 t

ri
p
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 (
in

d
e

x
 a

t 
2
0
0

1
/0

2
 =

1
0

0
) 

L
T

P
 T

8
 

L
T

P
 T

6
 

L
T

P
 T

9
 

B
V

 1
7
8
a
 

L
T

P
 T

5
 

(b
ie

n
n
ia

l)
 

6
3

2
0
 (

2
4
.8

%
) 

5
2
%

1
1
3

N
o
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

8
5

2
6
.3

%

4
9
%

1
1
8
.9

9
 

3
7
%

 w
a

lk
in

g
 

2
%

 c
y
c
lin

g
 

9
5

2
6
.9

%

A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

 

1
1
0
.8

6
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 w

a
lk

in
g

 
a
n

d
 c

y
c
li
n

g
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
ta

ff
 c

y
c
lin

g
 a

) 
to

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 b

) 
to

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

G
E

M
a
) 

+
5
.2

9
%

 

b
) 

1
5
9

5
 m

ile
s
 

c
la

im
e

d
 

a
) 

+
2
9
%

 o
v
e
r 

3
 

y
e

a
rs

 
b
) 

1
0
8

6
 m

ile
s
 

c
la

im
e

d
 

a
) 

D
a
ta

 d
u

e
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

b
) 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 

d
a
ta

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g

e
r 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
(B

u
s
 &

 R
a
il)

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

- 
jo

u
rn

e
y
s
 o

n
 l
o

w
 

fl
o
o
r 

b
u
s
e
s
 (

in
d
e

x
 2

0
0
1
/0

2
 =

 1
0
0
) 

B
V

P
I 

1
0
2
 

L
T

P
 T

1
+

2
 

L
T

P
 T

1
 

(L
T

P
2
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

0
6
/0

7
)

B
: 

3
,2

4
8
,9

3
5
 

R
: 

3
,0

7
9
,0

0
0
 

1
1
2

B
:

3
,4

3
3

,0
4

3

R
: 

N
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 i
n

 
L

T
P

2

B
:

3
,3

5
5

,0
0

0

R
: 

N
o

t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 
o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

v
e

lli
n

g
 o

n
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 a
) 

to
 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 b

) 
to

 m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

G
E

M
a
) 

- 
3
6
%

 

b
) 

3
9
4
 

a
) 

- 
4
%

 o
v
e
r 

3
 

y
e

a
rs

 
b
) 

3
9
9
 

a
) 

D
a
ta

 d
u

e
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

b
) 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 

d
a
ta

R
e
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
ily

 t
ra

ff
ic

 (
A

A
D

T
) 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 i
) 

in
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir

e
 (

in
d

e
x
 2

0
0
1
/0

2
 =

 1
0
0
) 

ii)
 R

u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

  

L
T

P
1
1
 &

 3
 

i)
 9

9
.6

 
ii)

 1
0

0
.4

 
i)
 1

0
0
.6

3
  

 
ii)

 1
0

1
.7

1
 

i)
 9

9
.3

9
 

ii)
 1

0
1
.5

1
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 
u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 c
a

r 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 c

a
r 

m
ile

a
g

e
 c

la
im

s
 f

ro
m

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 

G
E

M
2
,3

3
8
,1

0
3
 

2
,2

8
2
,5

6
7
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 r
o

a
d

s
 

a
n

d
 f

o
o

tp
a
th

s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

’s
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

) 
P

ri
n
c
ip

le
 r

o
a

d
s
, 

b
) 

N
o
n
-

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 r

o
a
d
s
, 

c
) 

c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 r

o
a
d
s
 

(p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 t

y
p
e
 n

e
e

d
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a
ti
o

n
) 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 f

o
o
tw

a
y
s
 

(p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 

p
e
o

p
le

 

T
im

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
c
ti
fy

 s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 f

a
u
lt
s
 (

d
a

y
s
) 

u
n

d
e
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

a
) 

L
A

 a
n

d
 

b
) 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 O
p

e
ra

to
r 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 r

o
a

d
 c

lo
s
u
re

s
 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

K
S

I 
ro

a
d
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 

c
a
s
u
a

lt
ie

s
 (

a
ll/

c
h
ild

re
n
)

B
V

 2
2
3
, 

2
2

4
a
, 

2
2
4

b
 

B
V

1
8
7

B
V

1
6
5

B
V

 2
1
5
a
 &

 b
 

B
V

1
0
0

B
V

9
9
 (

a
,b

,c
,d

&
e
) 

L
T

P
P

S
A

3

a
) 

2
1
%

 
b
) 

4
9
.5

%
 

c
) 

2
2
.2

%
 

3
0
.6

8
%

 

8
0
%

a
) 

1
0
.3

 
b
) 

4
7
.1

 
0 1
4
1
/8

a
) 

1
4
%

 
b
) 

2
1
%

 
c
) 

2
4
.2

8
%

 
3
1
.0

%

9
2
%

a
) 

8
.8

5
 

b
) 

5
6
.1

5
 

0 1
1
9
/1

0
 (

2
0

0
6
 

d
t

)

a
) 

6
%

 
b
) 

1
1
%

 
c
) 

3
2
.0

%
 

1
1
.2

%

9
2
%

a
) 

6
.6

1
 

b
) 

9
.5

 
0 1
3
3
/1

1
  

19



E
n

e
rg

y
 &

 C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
2

0
0

5
/0

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
D

e
c
re

a
s
e

 c
a
rb

o
n

 d
io

x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
o

n
n

e
s
 o

f 
c
a

rb
o

n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
p

e
r 

h
e
a

d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
/y

e
a
r 

C
o

rp
 P

I 
9

.4
9

 t
o

n
n

e
s
 

(D
e

fr
a

 2
0
0

3
 

d
a

ta
/p

o
p
) 

1
0
.4

3
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 

(D
e

fr
a

 2
0
0

4
 

d
a

ta
 /
p

o
p

) 

9
.4

t 
C

O
2
 

(D
e

fr
a

 2
0
0

5
 

d
a

ta
 /
p

o
p

) 

R
e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
s
s
il 

fu
e
l 
a
n
d
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
o

u
n
c
il 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

B
V

 1
8
0
a
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

 
1
1
,8

9
9
t 
C

O
2
 

1
1
,0

0
8
t 
C

O
2
 

1
2
,4

2
9
t 
C

O
2
  

1
1
,9

1
6
t 
C

O
2
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 o

f 
c

a
rb

o
n

 d
io

x
id

e
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
g

re
e

n
h

o
u

s
e

g
a

s
e

s

R
e

d
u

c
e

 c
a
rb

o
n

 d
io

x
id

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

u
p
o

n
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
t 
h
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 b

y
 1

.2
5
%

 

C
M

A
P

/ 
P

P
I 
4

d
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

 
1
2
,9

3
3
t 
C

O
2
  

1
1
,8

5
9
t 
C

O
2
 

1
3

,2
5

9
tC

O
2

  
1
2
,7

6
7
t 
C

O
2
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 e
n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
c
to

rs
 

H
E

C
A

1
.7

7
%

1
.8

3
%

D
a
ta

 d
u
e
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 p

e
r 

s
q

u
a

re
 m

e
tr

e
 G

ro
s
s
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

re
a

 

P
P

I 
4
b
 (

A
M

P
) 

£
9

.2
3

£
1

4
.0

5
A

w
a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s

E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 c

o
s
ts

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
) 

A
d

d
e

d
 i
n

 f
o

r 
0

6
/0

7
 r

e
p

o
rt

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
c
o

d
e
s
 

£
1
,3
4
7
,4
0
9

£
1
,6
1
8
,8
2
5

£
1
,6
5
6
5
1
1

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
re

n
e

w
a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

lly
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 U

n
it
a

ry
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n

 

P
e

rm
is

s
io

n
s
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 

1
5

D
a

ta
d

u
e

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
m

o
te

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 

e
n

e
rg

y
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 1
0
0
%

 r
e
n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 f
o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
. 

G
E

M
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

re
n

e
w

e
d

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

re
n

e
w

e
d

. 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
n
o
t 

re
n

e
w

e
d

 

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

4

20



 W
a
te

r 
&

 F
lo

o
d

in
g

 

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
2

0
0

5
/0

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
(W

h
e
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t,
 a

ll 
n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 e
n
e

rg
y
) 

 

N
o
n
e

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
  
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 m

o
re

 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

w
a
te

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

R
e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
w

a
te

r 
in

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 p

e
r 

s
q
u
a
re

 m
e

tr
e
 G

ro
s
s
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

re
a
 

(G
IA

)

P
P

I 
4
c
 (

A
M

P
) 

£
1

.8
3

£
1

.7
0

A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

  

S
e

c
u
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

y
 

ta
k
in

g
 a

 p
re

c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 f
lo

o
d
 r

is
k
, 
h
a
v
in

g
 

re
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
lo

o
d

 p
la

in
s
 o

f 
th

e
 R

iv
e

rs
 W

y
e

 a
n

d
 

L
u

g
g

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 t
ri

b
u

ta
ri

e
s
  
 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

E
A

 a
d
v
ic

e
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 
fl
o

o
d

in
g

1
1

A
w

a
it
in

g
d

a
ta

 
M

it
ig

a
te

 f
lo

o
d

 r
is

k
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 U

n
it

a
ry

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

 

(E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
w

h
e
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 i
n

 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
fl
o

o
d

in
g
, 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 r

e
a
s
o
n

a
b

le
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 a
 l
o

w
e
r 

ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
, 
c
o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
.)

  

N
o

n
e

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 
w

h
e
n

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 i
n
 

2
0

0
8

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

d
 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
fl

o
o

d
in

g
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

fl
o

o
d

in
g

 e
v
e
n
ts

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 a

) 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
, 
b

) 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 l
o
g

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
) 

F
lo

o
d

 F
o

ru
m

s
 h

e
ld

 

N
/A

a
) 

1
 

b
) 

2
 

c
) 

2
 

a
) 

1
 

b
) 

4
0

 
c
) 

2
 

a
) 

0
 

b
) 

4
 

c
) 

2
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 

R
iv

e
rs

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

ty
’s

 r
iv

e
rs

 i
n
 

‘v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
’ 
o
r 

‘g
o
o
d
’ 
c
a
te

g
o

ri
e
s
 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 a
) 

B
io

lo
g
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 b

) 
C

h
e
m

ic
a
l 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

S
O

H
 F

6
 

a
) 

8
5

%
 2

0
0

4
 

b
) 

8
3

%
 2

0
0

4
 

a
) 

8
4

%
 2

0
0

5
 

b
) 

8
4

%
 2

0
0

5
 

2
0

0
6

 d
a

ta
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
o
n
 a

u
d
it
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

5

21



N
a
tu

ra
l 
&

 B
u

il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

*
D

e
fi

n
it

iv
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 o
w

n
e

d
 s

it
e

s
 n

o
t 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
. 

 F
ig

u
re

s
 q

u
o

te
d

 a
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

N
E

 w
e

b
s

it
e
.

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 
2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

re
p
a
re

 a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 B

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  

(B
A

P
) 

w
it
h
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

N
/A

B
A

P
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

N
o
w

 o
n
 B

A
R

S
.

B
e
g
a
n
 r

e
v
is

io
n

 
o
f 
B

A
P

.

R
e

v
is

io
n

 d
u

e
 

fo
r 

c
o

m
p
le

ti
o
n
 

e
n

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
 s

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

S
P

G
) 

o
n
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
re

e
s
 

N
/A

T
ie

d
 i
n
 w

it
h
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
U

D
P

U
D

P
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

in
 2

0
0

7
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g

s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
S

P
G

. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
e
d

 l
a

n
d

 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

 n
a

tu
re

 c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 f
o

r 
B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 

C
o
rp

 P
I 
 

(&
 G

E
M

) 
N

A
(F

ig
u
re

s
 q

u
o

te
d

 
in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 

b
e

 i
n

a
c
c
u

ra
te

) 

2
5
.3

4
%

3
1
.1

%

P
ro

te
c

t 
a

n
d

 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it

y
 a

s
s

e
ts

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
S

it
e
s
 o

f 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 I
n
te

re
s
t 
(S

S
S

I)
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
S

A
6

-
*5

 s
it
e
s
 f
o

u
n
d

 

o
n

 N
E

 w
e
b

s
it
e

 
3

 w
e

re
 c

la
s
s
e
d

 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
le

 /
 

re
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g

A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

  

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
C

o
n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o
n

 A
re

a
s
 

w
it
h

 C
h
a

ra
c
te

r 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

  

B
V

 2
1
9

a
) 

1
.5

%
 

a
) 

1
2
.5

%
 

a
) 

2
5
%

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

h
is

to
ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 

N
/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
a

n
d
 t
h

e
 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

t 
R

is
k
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

N
/A

C
o

n
s

e
rv

e
 t

h
e

 b
u

il
t 

a
n

d
 h

is
to

ri
c

 
h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t

N
/A

T
h

e
s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

6

22



P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
2

0
0

5
/0

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
P

ro
m

o
te

 f
o
rm

s
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 

m
in

im
is

e
 t
h
e
 d

e
p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
a
rc

e
 n

o
n
-r

e
n
e
w

a
b
le

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
re

d
u

c
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
te

, 
a

n
d

 e
n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

P
5
) 

T
h

e
 U

D
P

 w
ill

 f
a

v
o

u
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
n

d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 (

P
6

) 

P
ro

te
c
t,

 r
e
s
to

re
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n
c
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

s
s
e

ts
 

g
iv

in
g

 s
p
e

c
ia

l 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
rr

e
p

la
c
e
a

b
le

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ts
 (

P
7

) 

P
ro

m
o

te
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 l
a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t,
 

e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o

n
, 
re

-u
s
e

 a
n

d
 

e
n

h
a
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
d

e
g

ra
d
e

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

s
s
e

ts
 (

P
8
) 

P
ro

m
o
te

 b
e
tt
e

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 w

o
rk

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 w
a

y
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 
tr

a
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
n

o
n

-c
a
r 

b
a
s
e

d
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
(P

9
)

P
ro

m
o

te
 h

ig
h
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
, 
s
e

tt
in

g
, 

la
y
o

u
t 
a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

o
th

 n
e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ts
. 
H

ig
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 
w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 

u
s
e

 l
o
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 (

P
1

0
) 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 

m
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

. 
 A

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

o
re

 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
o

u
ld

 o
ff

e
r 

s
o

m
e

 
w

a
y
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 a
im

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
.

T
h

e
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

re
v
ie

w
e
d

d
u

ri
n
g

 2
0

0
8

 
a
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
im

e
 

th
e

s
e

 a
im

s
 

a
n

d
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 r
e

p
la

c
e

d
. 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 
U

n
it

a
ry

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 
c

o
n

ta
in

s
 c

le
a

r 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s

 t
o

 
p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t
P

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

o
s

e
 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 p

o
s

it
iv

e
 

im
p

a
c

t 
u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
ta

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 
o
n
 B

ro
w

n
fi
e
ld

 l
a
n
d

B
V

P
I 
1
0
6
 

7
1
.3

%
7
6
.7

%
7
4
.6

%

B
V

P
I 
1
0
9
 &

 1
7
9
 

a
) 

6
1
%

 
a
) 

7
5
%

 
a
) 

6
8
%

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

 

R
e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
: 
a
) 

M
a
jo

r 
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
b
) 

M
in

o
r 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
) 

O
th

e
r 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
) 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 
s
e

a
rc

h
e
s
  

b
) 

7
4
%

 
b
) 

8
4
%

 
b
) 

7
9
%

 
c
) 

8
2

%
 

c
) 

9
2

%
 

c
) 

8
9

%
 

(B
V

P
I 
1
7
9
 

d
e
le

te
d
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0

0
6
)

d
) 

7
5
.9

4
%

 
d
) 

n
o
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 
d
) 

n
o
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

7

23



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
R

is
k
s
 &

 P
o

ll
u

ti
o

n

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
2

0
0

5
/0

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
R

e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
m

e
a
n
 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 
n
it
ro

g
e
n
 

d
io

x
id

e
 a

t 
s
it
e
s
 i
n

 H
e
re

fo
rd

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 M

a
rk

e
t 

T
o

w
n
s
 (

a
v
. 
C

h
a

n
g
e

) 

S
O

H
- 

8
.5

u
g

/m
3

3
3

+
2
2
.7

u
g
/m

- 
4

8
.8

u
g
/m

(2
0
0
5
 t

o
ta

l 

2
4
3
.7

u
g
/m

3
)

(2
0
0
6
 t

o
ta

l

2
6
6
.4

u
g
/m

3
)

(2
0
0
7
 t

o
ta

l 

2
1
7
.6

u
g
/m

3
)

R
e

d
u

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 p
e

rm
it
te

d
 i
n
d
u

s
tr

ia
l 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
im

e
 

B
V

P
I 
2
1
7
 

9
5
.2

9
%

9
6
.8

%
9
7
.9

%
In

v
e

s
ti

g
a

te
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
e

 
a

c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 
c

o
n

ta
m

in
a

te
d

 l
a

n
d

B
V

P
I 
2
1
8
a
 &

 b
 

a
) 

8
3
%

 
a
) 

9
8
%

 
a
) 

9
4
.7

4
%

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
n

e
w

 r
e
p

o
rt

s
 o

f 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 a
) 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a

te
d

 
w

it
h
in

 2
4
h
rs

 o
f 
n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

) 
re

m
o
v
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 2
4
h
rs

 o
f 
b
e
in

g
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 a
s
 a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

.

b
) 

9
0
%

 
b
) 

9
9
%

 
b
) 

9
7
.8

3
%

 

B
V

P
I 
2
1
6
a
 &

 b
 

a
) 

5
,9

1
0
 

a
) 

2
8

9
6

 
a

) 
2

8
9
2

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 (
a

) 
s
it
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 (

b
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 
th

o
s
e

 s
it
e
s
 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
d

e
ta

il 
is

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 d
e

c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

re
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 

b
) 

0
.1

5
%

 
b
) 

0
.2

%
 

b
) 

0
.0

4
 

In
v

e
s

ti
g

a
te

 a
n

d
 t

a
k

e
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 
c

o
n

ta
m

in
a

te
d

 l
a

n
d

 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 c

o
n

ta
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
la

n
d

 
c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 s

it
e

s
 

1
1

1

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

B
V

P
I 
1
6
6
a

4
5
%

9
8
.7

5
%

1
0
0
%

Im
p

ro
v

e
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 T
ra

d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
tr

a
d

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

B
V

P
I 
1
6
6
b
 

7
8
.7

5
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

8

24



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
&

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 W
o

rk
in

g
 

G
G

lo
s
a
ry

 o
f 

tt
t

A
IM

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

N
/A

H
B

E
A

s
e

t 
u

p
a

) 
1

8
 

a
) 

2
4

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 (

e
it
h

e
r 

E
M

A
S

 o
r 

IS
O

 

1
4
0

0
1
)

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
a
) 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
H

B
E

A
  
 

b
) 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n

e
 s

e
m

in
a

r

b
) 

7
2

 
b

) 
5

0
P

ro
m

o
te

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s

y
s

te
m

s
 

E
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
o

u
t 
a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

G
E

M
6 re

m
a

in
in

g
 

b
lo

c
k
s

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

n
o

w
 c

o
v
e

re
d
 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

n
o

w
 c

o
v
e

re
d
 

N
/A

(a
) 

7
2

 
(a

) 
8
1

 
a

) 
8

6
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 (

a
) 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

E
c
o

-S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 (
b
) 

th
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
th

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

w
a
rd

 l
e
v
e
ls

 

(b
) 

1
7

 
(b

) 
4
9

 
b

) 
6

2
 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 h
o
m

e
s
 (

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
h

o
u
s
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

 
a
d
v
is

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
) 

P
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

E
E

A
C

2
9

5
6

1
4

7
8

D
u

e
 O

c
to

b
e

r 

P
ro

m
o

te
a

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
 o

f 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

is
s

u
e

s

In
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ta
ff
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
G

E
M

 a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e
s

a
) 

s
ta

ff
 o

p
in

io
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 (

%
 a

w
a
re

) 
b

) 
n

u
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

in
e

d
 i
n

 G
E

M
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

S
ta

ff
 O

p
in

io
n
 

S
u
rv

e
y

In
 h

o
u
s
e
 

tr
a

in
in

g

a
) 

n
o
t 
in

 
s
u

rv
e

y
 

b
) 

1
2

 G
E

M
 

/ 
2
2
1
 

in
d

u
c
ti
o

n
  

a
) 

n
o
t 
in

 
s
u

rv
e

y
 

b
) 

1
7
 G

E
M

 /
 

2
3

4
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o
n
 

a
) 

8
1
%

 

b
) 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 

d
a

ta

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 A

m
b

it
io

n
 G

ro
u

p
s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 (

n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
) 

N
/A

4
A

m
b
it
io

n
g

ro
u
p

s
 

s
to

p
p
e

d
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0

0
6

N
o

t 
a

p
p

lic
a
b

le
 

B
V

 1
9
9
a
/b

/c
 

a
) 

1
8
%

 
a
) 

1
7
%

 
a
) 

1
4
%

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c

a
l

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
la

n
d
 a

n
d

 
h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 w

it
h
 u

n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f:
 a

) 
L
it
te

r 
&

 
d
e
tr

it
u
s
, 
b
) 

G
ra

ff
it
i 
&

 c
) 

F
ly

 p
o
s
ti
n
g
. 

b
) 

3
%

 
b
) 

2
%

 
b
) 

2
%

 
c
) 

2
%

 
c
) 

1
%

 
c
) 

0
 

B
V

 1
9
9
d
 

G
ra

d
e

 1
  

G
ra

d
e

 1
 

G
ra

d
e

 3
 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 f
ly

-
ti
p
p
in

g
.

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

9

25



G
lo

s
s
a

ry
 o

f 
a

b
b

re
v
ia

ti
o

n
s
 

G
E

M
 

 
G

o
o

d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
(t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
) 

B
V

 /
 B

V
P

I 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

s
e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t)

 
P

P
I 

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

J
M

W
S

  
J
o
in

t 
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

2
0
0
4
  

- 
2
0
3
4
) 

L
T

P
 

 
L
o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
  

K
S

I 
 

K
ill

e
d
 &

 S
e

ri
o
u
s
ly

 I
n
ju

re
d
 

P
S

A
 

 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

C
M

A
P

  
C

a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  

E
A

 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 

H
E

C
A

  
H

o
m

e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

d
v
ic

e
  

B
A

R
S

  
B

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 R

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
A

P
 

 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

E
E

A
C

  
E

n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

N
E

  
 

N
a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
la

n
d
  

(s
u
c
c
e
s
s
o
r 

to
 E

n
g
lis

h
 N

a
tu

re
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
D

E
F

R
A

) 
U

D
P

 
 

U
n
it
a
ry

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
O

H
 

 
S

ta
te

 o
f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
H

B
E

A
  

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

A
M

P
 

 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

A
M

R
 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
e
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 q

u
a
n
ta

ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
, 

a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

e
n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
. 

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
ts

 ‘
S

te
p
s
 t

o
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

’ 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 a

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 t
ie

d
 i
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

te
p
s
 t

o
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
.

lo
s
s
a
ry

 o
f 

te
rm

s
 t

e
rm

s
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
la

s
t 
u

p
d

a
te

: 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
e

rs
io

n
 1

 

1
0

26



A
c
ti

v
it

y
S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

D
a
ta

 

s
u

p
p

li
e
r

2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 f

u
ll

S
m

a
llh

o
ld

in
g
s

7
2
7
8
3
3
3

7
2
7
8
3
3
3

M
a
jo

r 
c
lo

s
e
d
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

s
it
e
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h

B
C

L
e
o
m

in
s
te

r
B

C
9
,3

2
5
,0

0
0

8
,4

6
6
,0

0
0

7
,7

9
2
,0

0
0

7
,1

1
7
,0

0
0

6
,5

0
3
,0

0
0

6
,5

0
3
,0

0
0

S
tr

a
n
g
fo

rd
B

C
2
,3

9
3
,0

0
0

2
,2

7
0
,0

0
0

2
,1

4
7
,0

0
0

2
,0

2
5
,0

0
0

1
,9

0
2
,0

0
0

1
,9

0
2
,0

0
0

S
tr

e
tt
o
n
 S

u
g
w

a
s

B
C

2
0
,4

9
1
,0

0
0

1
8
,5

2
8
,0

0
0

1
6
,7

4
9
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

3
1
,0

0
0

1
3
,4

9
7
,0

0
0

1
3
,4

9
7
,0

0
0

L
a
n

d
fi

ll
 s

u
b

to
ta

l 
3
2
,2

0
9
,0

0
0

2
9
,2

6
4
,0

0
0

2
6
,6

8
8
,0

0
0

2
4
,1

7
3
,0

0
0

2
1
,9

0
2
,0

0
0

2
1
,9

0
2
,0

0
0

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

(i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
)

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

5
6
,7

8
8

5
1
,0

9
9

4
9
,0

5
1

4
8
,0

8
0

4
9
,9

2
7

4
9
,9

2
7

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

A
B

2
,0

9
8
,8

5
3

2
,0

9
8
,8

5
3

H
C

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 m

ile
a
g
e

B
B

1
0
0
4
8
0
5

9
7
0
6
8
1

7
9
1
4
2
8

7
7
1
2
5
6

7
9
0
,3

6
0

7
9
0
,3

6
0

H
C

 R
a
il 

w
a
rr

a
n
ts

9
6
8
8

1
1
7
9
2

1
0
5
7
6

1
1
0
3
9

1
1
0
3
9

1
1
0
3
9

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
u

b
to

ta
l 

1
,0

7
1
,2

8
1

1
,0

3
3
,5

7
2

8
5
1
,0

5
5

8
3
0
,3

7
5

8
5
1
,3

2
6

2
,9

5
0
,1

7
9

S
ta

ti
o
n
a
ry

 s
o
u
rc

e
s

S
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g

2
,0

1
1
,5

3
8

2
,0

1
1
,5

3
8

C
a
rb

o
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
to

ta
l

C
a
rb

o
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
ta

l 
- 

s
e
e
 n

o
te

s
 c

o
lu

m
n

27



P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 g

a
s
 &

 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 u

s
e

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
E

D
S

/W
M

S

  
  
1
1
,1

3
8
,8

4
6
.0

0
 

  
  
  
1
0
,2

4
7
,7

4
7
.0

0
 

  
  
  
 1

1
,0

0
1
,5

6
3
.0

0
 

  
  
  
 1

0
,3

0
1
,0

5
6
.0

0
 

  
  
  
1
0
,3

0
1
,0

5
6
.0

0
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 h

a
lf
 

h
o
u
rl
y

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

7
6
0
6
7
9
.9

7
6
0
6
7
9
.9

  
  
  
  
 1

,4
2
7
,5

7
1
.7

0
 

1
6
1
5
1
3
4
.4

1
6
1
5
1
3
4
.4

P
lo

u
g
h
 L

a
n
e
 g

a
s
 &

 e
le

c

2
6
6
,4

8
6
.7

0
2
6
6
,4

8
6
.7

0

S
ta

ti
o

n
a
ry

 s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

s
u

b
to

ta
l

1
1
8
9
9
5
2
5
.9

1
1
,0

0
8
,4

2
6
.9

0
  
 

1
2
,4

2
9
,1

3
4
.7

0
  
  

1
1
,9

1
6
,1

9
0
.4

0
  
  

1
4
,1

9
4
,2

1
5
.1

0

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s

k
g

s
 C

O
2

1
,0

7
1

,2
8

1
1

2
,9

3
3

,0
9

8
1

1
,8

5
9

,4
8

2
1

3
,2

5
9

,5
1

0
1

2
,7

6
7

,5
1

6
1

7
,1

4
4

,3
9

4

%
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 f

ro
m

 

0
4
/0

5
 b

a
s
e
li
n

e

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 y

e
a
r

-8
.3

0
2

.7
5

-1
.2

5
3

2
.9

8

C
a
rb

o
n

 b
e
n

e
fi

ts

H
E

C
A

P
ri
v
a
te

 

S
e
c
to

r

H
F

8
3
3
3
0
0
0

1
0
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

8
1
4
7
0
0
0

1
4
0
4
0
0
0
0

H
C

 C
y
c
le

 M
ile

a
g
e

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

B
B

3
0
8

5
1
1

1
5
9
5

1
0
8
6

A
c
ti

v
it

y
S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

D
a
ta

 

s
u

p
p

li
e
r

2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 f

u
ll

1
.2

5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 0

4
/0

5
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e

1
.2

5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b

e
s
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 i
s

1
9
3
,9

9
6
 k

g
s
 C

O
2
 

p
a

2
1
9
,0

2
6
 k

g
s
 C

O
2
 

p
a

C
a
rb

o
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
ta

l 
- 

s
e
e
 

n
o
te

s
 c

o
lu

m
n

C
a
rb

o
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
to

ta
l

28



C
o

s
t

C
a
rb

o
n

 f
a
c
to

r 
a
p

p
li
e
d

 
N

o
te

s

C
a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
fo

r 
te

n
a
n
te

d
 a

g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
la

n
d
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 &

 f
u
e
l,
 

m
e
th

a
n
e
 f
ro

m
 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 a

n
d
 n

it
ro

u
s
 o

x
id

e
s
.N

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 N

I1
8
5
 o

r 
C

M
A

P
.

F
ig

u
re

s
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

.
L
A

 h
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 s

it
e
s
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
m

 a
ll.

 F
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
c
a
le

 o
f 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
, 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 i
n
p
u
ts

 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
d
 7

0
%

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 w

a
s
te

, 
2
0
%

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 1

0
%

 i
n
e
rt

 w
a
s
te

. 

M
e
th

a
n
e
 h

a
s
 a

 G
lo

b
a
l 
W

a
rm

in
g
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
(G

W
P

) 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 2

1
 t
im

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e

F
la

re
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
0
8
 s

h
o
u
ld

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 m

e
th

a
n
e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
.

In
c
lu

d
e
d
  
in

 2
0
0
5
 C

M
A

P
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 N

I1
8
5
. 
E

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
o
ta

l 
a
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
a
tu

ra
l 
d
e
c
a
y
 o

n
ly

.

M
ile

s
 x

 I
.6

0
9
 (

m
ile

s
/k

m
s
) 

x
 0

.2
7
 C

O
2
 

F
a
c
to

r 
(m

e
d
iu

m
 d

ie
s
e
l 
v
a
n
)

In
-h

o
u
s
e
 m

ile
a
g
e
 i
n
 d

ie
s
e
l 
m

in
ib

u
s
e
s

L
it
re

s
 x

 2
.6

3
 (

d
ie

s
e
l/
lit

re
)

F
ig

u
re

 n
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
ta

l 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e
 y

e
a
r'
s
 d

a
ta

M
ile

s
 x

 1
.6

0
9
 (

m
ile

s
/k

m
s
) 

x
 0

.2
1
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
tr

o
l 
c
a
r 

 (
a
v
 d

ie
s
e
l 
c
a
r 

is
 0

.2
)

0
.0

6
 p

e
r 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

k
m

A
s
s
u
m

in
g
 r

o
u
n
d
 t
ri
p
s
, 
h
a
lf
 t
o
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 &

 h
a
lf
 t
o
 B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

: 
tr

ip
s
 (

ro
w

 1
6
) 

x
 2

0
0
 m

ile
s
 x

 1
.6

0
9
 x

 

0
.0

6

U
n
d
e
re

s
ti
m

a
te

: 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 o

u
t 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 e
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs

c
 £

2
5
0
,0

0
0

S
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 N

I 
1
8
5
. 
N

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 t
o
ta

l 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
n
v
e
n
to

ry
 o

n
ly

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 t
h
is

 

y
e
a
r.

 S
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

s
 a

n
 U

n
m

e
te

re
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 (
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 r

e
a
d
) 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
p
e
rs

e
d
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 
th

e
 c

.1
1
9
8
3
 l
ig

h
ts

, 
9
7
7
S

ig
n
s
, 
3
7
3
 B

o
lla

rd
s
 a

n
d
 2

6
0
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 

H
e
a
d
s
 =

 T
o
ta

l 
1
3
5
9
3
 u

n
it
s
. 
P

ri
c
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
ly

 p
e
r 

u
n
it
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
p
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 r

e
le

t 
in

 2
0
0
9
.

29



S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 g
ri
d
 f
a
c
to

rs
 u

s
e
d
: 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
, 

0
.5

2
3
 a

n
d
 g

a
s
 0

.1
8
5

D
a
ta

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 W

M
S

 a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 b

y
 E

D
S

. 
F

u
ll 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
  
o
n
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 w

o
rk

s
h
e
e
t 
in

 t
h
is

 

fi
le

.1
0
0
%

 R
e
n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 N

o
v
 0

3
 &

 N
o
v
 0

7

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 g
ri
d
 f
a
c
to

rs
 u

s
e
d
: 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
, 

0
.5

2
3

C
a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 b

y
 W

M
S

: 
s
e
e
 a

ls
o
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
b

0
.5

2
3
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
. 
G

a
s
: 
x
0
.1

8
5

C
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 C

h
ri
s
 P

re
e
d
y
 o

f 
S

c
o
tt
is

h
 &

 N
e
w

c
a
s
tl
e
. 
G

a
s
 x

0
.3

1
3
 t
o
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

 f
ro

m
 

c
u
b
ic

 f
e
e
t 
to

 k
w

h
 (

D
ig

e
s
t 
o
f 
U

K
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

ta
ts

 2
0
0
3
)

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 f
u
ll 

c
o
lu

m
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
re

s
ti
m

a
te

: 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 o
r 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs

%
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

e
ll 

F
3
3
 a

s
 1

0
0
%

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 
N

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 N

I1
8
5
 o

r 
C

M
A

P
 

2
0
0
5
.

0

C
o

s
t

C
a
rb

o
n

 f
a
c
to

r 
a
p

p
li
e
d

 
N

o
te

s

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te

 1
1
/0

8
/0

8
 T

M
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 U

n
it

30



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15TH SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from John Eades, Improvement Manager 
 on 01432 260985 

 

Performancereport20.doc 

 ENVIRONMENT: PERFORMANCE FOR THE FOUR-
MONTH PERIOD TO JULY 2008 

Report By: Director of Environment & Culture and Director 
of Regeneration 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the progress towards achievement of targets for 2008-
09 relevant to the Environment Scrutiny Committee and contained within the 
Environment & Culture Directorate and the Regeneration Directorate. It has 
been the practice for this report to have a similar format to that used for the 
Integrated Performance and Finance Report (IPFR), but reporting on 
performance only. As a significant number of the performance indicators are 
new (from the National Indicator set) a different format has been chosen for 
this report only to enable a more detailed description of each indicator to be 
provided. Future reports will revert to the normal format. 

Financial Implications 

2. All expenditure in respect of these performance indicators and targets is from 
approved budgets. 

Content 

3. Performance has been judged using the following criteria: 

Red Not on target and planned activity not taking place 

Amber Not on target, but planned activity undertaken and remedial measure 
in place; or no data available but planned activity undertaken 

Green On target, or baseline data is not available for a new indicator and 
planned activity has taken place 

Progress against the Council’s Corporate Plan Priorities – Environment 
and Culture Directorate (see Appendix A) 

4. Analysis of performance against target by Council priority is detailed below: 

AGENDA ITEM 7

31



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15TH SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from John Eades, Improvement Manager 
 on 01432 260985 

 

Performancereport20.doc 

 

Judgement Priority No. of 
Indicators R A G 

Economic development and enterprise 2 0 2 0 

Safer and stronger communities 1 0 0 1 

Sustainable communities 4 0 2 2 

Total number of indicators 7 0 4 3 

5. Details of the indicators within each of the priorities above are in Appendix A. 

Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) 

6. The one remaining LPSA target is judged G. 

Local Area Agreement (LAA) 

7. For the LAA, no indicators are judged R, 3 A and 1 G. 

Overall performance 

8. Overall performance is considered to be on track for all Local Area 
Agreement, Community Strategy and Corporate Plan indicators on which the 
Environment and Culture Directorate leads or towards which it is making a 
significant contribution. There is a similar picture for other indicators, including 
those from the National Indicator set. 

Customer satisfaction 

9. The Environment and Culture Directorate has been undertaking regular 
monthly customer satisfaction surveys since March 2008. Responses to the 
June survey have been analysed, the following being highlights: 

• 81% of respondents were very or fairly satisfied with the service they 
received and 16% were very or fairly dissatisfied 

• 66% agreed their issue had been dealt with, 3% felt it had been only 
partially dealt with and 16% considered the issue had not been dealt with 

• 59% got the outcome they wanted, 19% did not and 6% considered they 
only partly received the outcome they wanted. 

• Particularly high levels of satisfaction were noted for staff politeness and 
courtesy (94%), ease of finding how to contact us (93%), opening hours 
(93%) and staff helpfulness (91%). 

32



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15TH SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from John Eades, Improvement Manager 
 on 01432 260985 

 

Performancereport20.doc 

• High levels of satisfaction were also noted for speed of response (87%), 
the ease of finding the right person to deal with the enquiry or request 
(83%), and whether the respondent felt that they had been listened to and 
understood (84%).  

• The lowest levels of satisfaction, although still in excess of 70%, related to 
the clarity of our stated intent (74%), whether we did what we said we 
would do (73%), the number of times the requester had to call (73%), the 
speed of resolution of the enquiry or request (71%), and the effectiveness 
of our actions (76%). 

10. The survey is currently limited to requests for services which are received 
either through Info by Phone or through the highways inspection system. June 
was the first month in which data based on the restructured Environment and 
Culture Directorate was available, so there is no direct comparison with the 
data collected in previous months. 

Improvement 

11. In addition to those indicators which the council measures itself against 
through its Corporate Plan, the Council is likely to be externally judged, 
particularly for the Comprehensive Area Assessment, on its improved 
performance against those indicators which are in the National Indicator set. 
Performance and comparative performance by the Environment Directorate 
against relevant indicators is shown in Appendix A. 

12. Of those indicators where in-year data is currently available and there is 
comparative data for 2007-08, the current direction of travel shows that 8 of 
indicators are on course to improve on last year, but 3 of the indicators are 
currently showing performance that is worse than for the same period last 
year. 

Progress against the Council’s Corporate Plan Priorities –Regeneration 
Directorate (see Appendix B) 

13. Analysis of Performance Against Target: 

No. of Indicators Judgement 

 R A G 

17 0 9 8 
 

14. Details of the performance indicators for the Regeneration Directorate are in 
Appendix B. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comments which Members may wish to make, the 
report be noted. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

33



34



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

C
o
n
g
e
st

io
n
 –

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

jo
u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e
 p

e
r 

m
ile

 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 m

o
rn

in
g
 p

e
a
k
 

(N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

jo
u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e
 p

e
r 

m
ile

 o
n
 m

a
jo

r 

ro
u
te

s 
in

 H
e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e
, 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

m
o
rn

in
g
 p

e
a
k
. 

It
s 

p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

co
n
g
e
st

io
n
, 

a
n
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 g

iv
e
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

h
o
w

 w
e
ll 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 i
s 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 o
f 

a
n
y
 m

e
a
su

re
s 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 c

u
t 

co
n
g
e
st

io
n
. 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

co
lle

ct
s 

th
e
 d

a
ta

, 
w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 a
n
n
u
a
lly

. 

 
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
sy

st
e
m

s 

h
a
s 

co
m

m
e
n
ce

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 r

e
p
la

ce
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

P
ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
fi
x
e
d
 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
 n

o
ti
ce

s 
fo

r 
st

re
e
tw

o
rk

s 
th

e
 

st
re

e
t 

w
o
rk

s 
sy

st
e
m

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 T

e
st

in
g
 i
s 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
 

a
ll 

u
ti
lit

ie
s.

 

N
e
w

 p
ro

to
co

l 
fo

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 

o
rd

e
rs

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

A
 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
p
ri
n
ci

p
a
l 

ro
a
d
s 

- 
%

 w
o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n
 

co
n
d
it
io

n
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

 (
N

I,
 

L
A
A

, 
C
P
) 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
A

-r
o
a
d
s 

w
h
e
re

 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s 

d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

su
rf

a
ce

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
a
d
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

, 
to

 b
e
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

It
s 

p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
te

 
o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s.

 

A
 s

p
e
ci

a
lis

t 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
r 

co
lle

ct
s 

d
a
ta

 

6
%

 
5
%

 
A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 

su
rv

e
y
 h

a
s 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 J

o
in

e
d
 

U
p
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

A
 

35



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r/

O
ct

o
b
e
r.

 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-

p
ri
n
ci

p
a
l 
ro

a
d
s 

- 
%

 
w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 

th
re

sh
o
ld

 –
 c

la
ss

if
ie

d
 

(N
I,

 L
A
A
, 

C
P
) 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
B
 a

n
d
 C

-r
o
a
d
s 

w
h
e
re

 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s 

d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

su
rf

a
ce

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
a
d
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

, 
to

 b
e
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 
It

s 
p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
te

 
o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s.

 

A
 s

p
e
ci

a
lis

t 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
r 

co
lle

ct
s 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
n
u
a
lly

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r/

O
ct

o
b
e
r.

 

1
1
%

 
1
0
%

 
A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 

su
rv

e
y
 h

a
s 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 J

o
in

e
d
 

U
p
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

A
 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-

p
ri
n
ci

p
a
l 
ro

a
d
s 

- 
%

 
w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 

th
re

sh
o
ld

 –
 u

n
cl

a
ss

if
ie

d
 

(l
o
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
u
n
cl

a
ss

if
ie

d
 r

o
a
d
s 

w
h
e
re

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s 

d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
 

su
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rf

a
ce

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
to

 b
e
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

. 
It

s 
p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s.

 

A
 s

p
e
ci

a
lis

t 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
r 

co
lle

ct
s 

d
a
ta

 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r/

O
ct

o
b
e
r.

 

3
2
%

 
3
2
%

 
A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 

su
rv

e
y
 h

a
s 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 J

o
in

e
d
 

U
p
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

A
 

P
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 

in
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

a
cc

id
e
n
ts

 (
N

I,
 L

A
A
, 

L
P
S
A

, 
C
P
) 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

co
m

p
a
re

d
 

1
3
3
 (

2
0
0
7
) 

<
 1

2
9
 (

2
0
0
8
) 

3
6
 (

Ja
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 J

u
n
e
) 

co
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 4

3
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r 

G
 

36



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

L
P
S
A

, 
C
P
) 

to
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
r.

 F
ig

u
re

s 
a
re

 

b
a
se

d
 o

n
 a

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
, 

u
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e
a
r 

(e
.g

. 
2
0
0
6
-

0
8
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

0
0
5
-0

7
).

 

T
o
 a

id
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 e

x
p
re

ss
e
d
 a

s 
a
n
 

a
b
so

lu
te

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

e
a
ch

 y
e
a
r.

 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 r
e
la

te
s 

to
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
rs

. 

In
-y

e
a
r 

d
a
ta

 i
s 

u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 

p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 k

ill
e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 

tr
a
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

e
n
ts

 K
S
I 

(N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 k

ill
e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

co
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
r.

 F
ig

u
re

s 
a
re

 
b
a
se

d
 o

n
 a

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
, 

u
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e
a
r 

(e
.g

. 
2
0
0
6
-

0
8
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

0
0
5
-0

7
).

 

T
o
 a

id
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 e

x
p
re

ss
e
d
 a

s 
a
n
 

a
b
so

lu
te

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

e
a
ch

 y
e
a
r.

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 r
e
la

te
s 

to
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
rs

. 
 

In
-y

e
a
r 

d
a
ta

 i
s 

u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 

1
1
 (

2
0
0
7
) 

<
 1

1
 (

2
0
0
8
) 

4
 (

Ja
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 J

u
n
e
) 

C
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 5

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r 

G
 

37



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 

fP
e
o
p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 

ro
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

e
n
ts

 
(l
o
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 

ro
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

ca
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r.

 

In
-y

e
a
r 

d
a
ta

 i
s 

u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 

7
1
3
 

<
 7

1
3
 

3
0
1
 (

Ja
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 J

u
n
e
) 

C
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 1

9
4
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r 

A
 

L
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
o
a
d
 

w
o
rk

s 
p
e
r 

k
ilo

m
e
tr

e
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 s

e
n
si

ti
v
e
 r

o
a
d
 

(l
o
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

0
 

0
 

0
 

G
 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
d
e
st

ri
a
n
 c

ro
ss

in
g
s 

w
it
h
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

 (
lo

ca
l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

9
2
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
9
4
%

 

G
 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s 

(l
o
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

1
1
.2

%
 

1
1
.2

%
 

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 

su
rv

e
y
 h

a
s 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 J

o
in

e
d
 

U
p
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

A
 

38



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

 
st

re
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 f

a
u
lt
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

co
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
lo

ca
l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

6
.6

1
 

6
.6

1
 

2
.4

5
 

C
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

.7
9
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r 

G
 

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 

to
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 

fa
u
lt
, 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
sp

o
n
se

 

ti
m

e
 i
s 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

a
 D

N
O

 (
lo

ca
l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
h
a
s 

n
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

re
sp

o
n
se

 t
im

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e
se

 s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ts

 

9
.5

 
9
.5

 
1
9
.2

 

A
 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

th
a
t 

is
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
 a

s 
h
a
v
in

g
 

d
e
p
o
si

ts
 o

f 
(a

) 
lit

te
r,

 (
b
) 

d
e
tr

it
u
s,

 (
c)

 f
ly

p
o
st

in
g
 

a
n
d
 (

d
) 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
th

a
t 

fa
lls

 
b
e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

cc
e
p
ta

b
le

 
le

v
e
l 
(N

I,
 C

P
) 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

th
a
t 

is
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 b

y
 

su
rv

e
y
 a

s 
h
a
v
in

g
 d

e
p
o
si

ts
 o

f 
lit

te
r,

 
d
e
tr

it
u
s,

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 f

ly
p
o
st

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

fa
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

cc
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l.
 L

it
te

r 

Is
 a

n
y
th

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

is
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
, 

th
ro

w
n
, 

le
ft

 o
r 

d
e
p
o
si

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

ca
u
se

s 
d
e
fa

ce
m

e
n
t 

in
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 

p
la

ce
. 

D
e
tr

it
u
s 

co
m

p
ri
se

s 
d
u
st

, 

m
u
d
, 

so
il,

 g
ra

v
e
l,
 s

to
n
e
s,

 l
e
a
f 

a
n
d
 

v
e
g
e
ta

b
le

 r
e
si

d
u
e
s,

 a
n
d
 f

ra
g
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

tw
ig

s,
 g

la
ss

, 
p
la

st
ic

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

 
(a

) 
1
0
 

(b
) 

1
2
 

(c
) 

2
 

(d
) 

1
 

T
h
e
 f

ir
st

 L
o
ca

l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 S

u
rv

e
y
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 

D
e
fr

a
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
a
ly

se
d
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

ct
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 l
o
n
g
e
r-

te
rm

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 L

E
Q

S
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 

d
e
tr

it
u
s 

a
s 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 b

o
rn

e
 o

u
t 

b
y
 i
n
it
ia

l 

a
n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 f

ir
st

 f
o
u
r-

m
o
n
th

 
se

ri
e
s 

o
f 

tr
a
n
se

ct
s.

 

A
 

39



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

fi
n
e
ly

 d
iv

id
e
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
G

ra
ff

it
i 
is

 

a
n
y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
o
r 

ill
e
g
a
l 
m

a
rk

s,
 

d
ra

w
in

g
s 

o
r 

p
a
in

ti
n
g
s 

th
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
lib

e
ra

te
ly

 m
a
d
e
. 

F
ly

-p
o
st

in
g
 

is
 a

n
y
 p

ri
n
te

d
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s 
in

fo
rm

a
lly

 o
r 

ill
e
g
a
lly

 f
ix

e
d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

. 
T
h
e
 

p
u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 t
o
 

re
d
u
ce

 u
n
a
cc

e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

lit
te

r,
 

d
e
tr

it
u
s,

 f
ly

p
o
st

in
g
 a

n
d
 g

ra
ff

it
i,
 k

e
y
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s 

‘C
le

a
n
e
r 

S
a
fe

r 
G

re
e
n
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s’
 w

o
rk

. 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 i
s 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

a
s 

B
V

P
I 

1
9
9
 a

-c
, 

it
 u

se
s 

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

se
t 

u
si

n
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

d
a
ta

, 
b
u
t 

th
e
se

 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
-a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 f

ir
st

 s
e
ri
e
s 

o
f 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

ra
n
se

ct
s 

in
 

A
u
g
u
st

. 

se
ri
e
s 

o
f 

tr
a
n
se

ct
s.

 

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
ci

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

 
in

 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
ct

io
n
s 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 f

ly
-

ti
p
p
in

g
’ 
(N

I)
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 

y
e
a
r 

ch
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fl
y
-

ti
p
p
in

g
 i
n
ci

d
e
n
ts

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
; 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

ch
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
ct

io
n
s 

ta
k
e
n
 a

g
a
in

st
 

fl
y
 t

ip
p
e
rs

. 
T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
is

 

m
e
a
su

re
 i
s 

to
 r

e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e
 i
n
ci

d
e
n
ce

 
o
f 

ill
e
g
a
lly

 d
u
m

p
e
d
 w

a
st

e
 a

s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

G
ra

d
in

g
 3

 
G

ra
d
in

g
 2

 
G

ra
d
in

g
 3

 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fl
y
-t

ip
p
in

g
 i
n
ci

d
e
n
ts

 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

. 
A

 m
o
re

 
ri
g
o
ro

u
s 

a
p
p
ro

a
ch

 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s 

n
o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 f

ir
st

 L
o
ca

l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

u
rv

e
y
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

A
 

40



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s 

'C
le

a
n
e
r 

S
a
fe

r 

G
re

e
n
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s'
 w

o
rk

. 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

u
rv

e
y
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 

D
e
fr

a
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
a
ly

se
d
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

ct
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 l
o
n
g
e
r-

te
rm

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

in
d
ic

a
te

s 
th

a
t,

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 f

ly
 

ti
p
p
in

g
, 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

s 
a
re

 g
o
o
d
. 

 

O
v
e
ra

ll/
g
e
n
e
ra

l 

sa
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 l
o
ca

l 
a
re

a
 (

N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

sa
ti
sf

ie
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 a

s 
a
 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 l
iv

e
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 i
n
 a

 s
u
rv

e
y
, 

to
 b

e
 

co
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 e

v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
It

s 

p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

e
a
su

re
 s

a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 a

s 
a
 p

la
ce

 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

a
n
d
 

h
e
lp

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

ss
 i
ss

u
e
s 

a
ff

e
ct

in
g
 h

o
w

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
ir
 l
o
ca

l 
a
re

a
. 

B
a
se

lin
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
-

0
9
. 

 
 

T
h
e
 f

ir
st

 L
o
ca

l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

u
rv

e
y
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 

D
e
fr

a
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
a
ly

se
d
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

ct
io

n
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 l
o
n
g
e
r-

te
rm

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

s 
re

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 l
it
te

r,
 l
e
a
f 

fa
ll,

 
w

e
e
d
 g

ro
w

th
, 

fl
y
ti
p
p
in

g
, 

w
a
st

e
 

p
la

ce
d
 o

u
t,

 f
ly

p
o
st

in
g
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
fi
ll 

o
f 

w
a
st

e
b
in

s 
a
re

 
e
it
h
e
r 

g
o
o
d
 o

r 
sa

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 w
h
e
re

a
s 

th
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
re

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 d

e
tr

it
u
s,

 

su
rf

a
ce

 s
ta

in
in

g
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
, 

st
re

e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 a
n
d
 b

u
s 

st
o
p
s 

is
 

u
n
sa

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

. 

G
 

41



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 

re
p
o
rt

s 
o
f 

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s 

in
v
e
st

ig
a
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 2
4
h
rs

 o
f 

n
o
ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 (

lo
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

9
4
.7

4
 

9
4
.7

4
 

1
0
0
 

G
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

o
in

t 
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s 

le
g
a
lly

 
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 

v
e
h
ic

le
 (

lo
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

9
7
.8

3
 

9
7
.8

3
 

1
0
0
 

G
 

%
 C

O
2
 r

e
d
u
ct

io
n
 f

ro
m

 
L
o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

(N
I,

 C
P
) 

T
h
is

 m
e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

fr
o
m

 H
e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s.

 T
o
 m

e
a
su

re
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 i
n
 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

si
o
n
 r

e
d
u
ct

io
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
a
n
d
 i
ts

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

cl
im

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

o
b
je

ct
iv

e
s.

 

B
a
se

lin
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
5
-

0
8
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

A
s 

th
is

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
u
se

s 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

d
a
ta

 s
e
ts

 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 

 
1
.2

5
%

 
A
 f

u
ll 

in
v
e
n
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

v
e
h
ic

le
 f

le
e
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

A
cc

re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 I

S
O

 1
4
0
0
1
 (

G
E
M

) 
re

ta
in

e
d
. 

E
co

-s
ch

o
o
ls

 e
v
e
n
t 

b
e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 

B
u
si

n
e
ss

 c
a
se

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

L
E
D

 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
ig

n
a
ls

. 

T
h
e
 M

y
E
n
e
rg

y
 s

ch
e
m

e
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
s 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
 a

 r
e
cy

cl
a
b
le

 “
E
n
e
rg

y
 

F
u
n
d
”.

 

G
 

42



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

th
e
 b

a
se

lin
e
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
e
d
. 

F
u
n
d
”.

 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 –

 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 N

O
x
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 P
M

1
0
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 

e
st

a
te

 a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

(N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 

y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 P
M

1
0
 

(a
ir
b
o
rn

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

te
s)

 a
n
d
 N

O
x
 

(n
it
ro

u
s 

o
x
id

e
s)

 e
m

is
si

o
n
s 

fr
o
m

 

lo
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
st

a
te

 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s.

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
is

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s 

th
a
t 

a
re

 p
ro

a
ct

iv
e
 i
n
 m

in
im

is
in

g
 a

ir
 

p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
ir
 

e
st

a
te

 a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s.

 

B
a
se

lin
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 a

lo
n
g
si

d
e
 t

h
a
t 

fo
r 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s.

 

 
 

A
 f

u
ll 

in
v
e
n
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

v
e
h
ic

le
 f

le
e
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

A
cc

re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 I

S
O

 1
4
0
0
1
 (

G
E
M

) 
re

ta
in

e
d
. 

E
co

-s
ch

o
o
ls

 e
v
e
n
t 

b
e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 M

y
E
n
e
rg

y
 s

ch
e
m

e
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
s 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
 a

 r
e
cy

cl
a
b
le

 “
E
n
e
rg

y
 

F
u
n
d
”.

 

G
 

%
 r

e
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 p

e
r 

ca
p
it
a
 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

in
 t

h
e
 L

A
 

a
re

a
 (

N
I,

 L
A

A
, 

C
P
) 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 C

O
2
 

e
m

is
si

o
n
s 

p
e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
 i
n
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e
 a

g
a
in

st
 t

h
e
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

in
 t

h
e
 b

a
se

lin
e
 y

e
a
r 

(2
0
0
5
).

 I
ts

 

p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

e
a
su

re
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n
 o

n
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

D
a
ta

 r
e
la

te
s 

to
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 D

e
fr

a
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 

9
.4

 t
o
n
n
e
s 

(2
0
0
5
 

b
a
se

lin
e
) 

1
3
.1

%
 (

2
0
1
0
)  

W
o
rl
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

D
a
y
 (

5
th
 J

u
n
e
) 

a
n
d
 E

a
rt

h
W

a
tc

h
 (

7
th
 –

 9
th
 J

u
n
e
) 

su
p
p
o
rt

e
d
. 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 R

E
:t

h
in

k
 E

n
e
rg

y
, 

 a
 

ca
p
it
a
l 
g
ra

n
t 

sc
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
's

 

(s
m

a
ll/

m
e
d
iu

m
 e

n
te

rp
ri
se

s)
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

R
R

Z
 (

ru
ra

l 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 z

o
n
e
) 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
st

a
lla

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y
 t

e
ch

n
o
lo

g
ie

s.
 

E
n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 s

ch
o
o
ls

, 
p
a
ri
sh

e
s 

a
n
d
 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s 

to
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 t

h
re

e
 

A
 

43



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 -
 e

a
ch

 f
o
r 

u
p
 

to
 5

0
%

 t
o
w

a
rd

s 
m

ic
ro

re
n
e
w

a
b
le

s.
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e
 D

e
cl

a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

n
 

cl
im

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 r

e
v
iv

e
d
. 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
 £

2
5
k
 g

ra
n
t 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
 T

ru
st

 f
o
r 

a
 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

w
a
re

n
e
ss

 c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
a
p
t 

to
 

cl
im

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 (

N
I)

 
T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

p
re

p
a
re

d
n
e
ss

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
h
a
s 

re
a
ch

e
d
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 r

is
k
s 

to
 

se
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
lo

ca
l 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

, 
b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 a
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 

cl
im

a
te

, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
st

 o
f 

n
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

ch
a
n
g
e
 

m
ig

h
t 

p
re

se
n
t.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
ca

n
 b

e
 

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 0
 t

o
 4

, 
d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 

a
ch

ie
v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

cr
it
e
ri
a
 n

e
ce

ss
a
ry

 

fo
r 

e
a
ch

 l
e
v
e
l.
 T

o
 e

n
su

re
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
n
e
ss

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
s 

a
n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
a
ri
si

n
g
 f

ro
m

 a
 

ch
a
n
g
in

g
 c

lim
a
te

. 

A
 b

a
se

lin
e
 i
s 

b
e
in

g
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
is

 
y
e
a
r.

 

 
 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
f 

p
a
st

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

 

A
 

44



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

F
lo

o
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
a
st

a
l 

e
ro

si
o
n
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

(N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

to
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 f
lo

o
d
 a

n
d
 

co
a
st

a
l 
e
ro

si
o
n
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s 

th
a
t 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

sa
ti
sf

a
ct

o
ri
ly

. 
A

g
re

e
d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

h
o
re

lin
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
a
tc

h
m

e
n
t 

F
lo

o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
o
n
ly

 

th
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

in
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e
’s

 c
a
se

) 
th

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
cy

's
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 

d
ir
e
ct

o
r.

 I
ts

 p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 r

e
co

rd
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

g
re

e
d
 

a
ct

io
n
s 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 

fl
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
a
st

a
l 
e
ro

si
o
n
 r

is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

(F
C
E
R

M
) 

p
la

n
s.

 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 D

e
fr

a
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

 
 

 

A
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

‘s
it
e
s 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
co

n
ce

rn
’ 
[w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
],

 

w
it
h
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
 

co
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 (

lo
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

2
,8

9
2
 

2
,8

9
2
 

 

A
 

45



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

si
te

s 
fo

r 

w
h
ic

h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 d
e
ci

d
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

re
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 

is
 n

e
ce

ss
a
ry

, 
a
s 

a
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

‘s
it
e
s 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
co

n
ce

rn
’ 
(l

o
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

0
.0

4
 

0
.0

4
 

 

A
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 

co
n
tr

o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 i
n
st

a
lla

ti
o
n
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

im
e
 

(l
o
ca

l)
 

T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
it
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s 

a
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
. 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

9
7
.9

 
9
7
.9

 
 

A
 

R
e
si

d
u
a
l 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 
w

a
st

e
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 (
N

I,
 

L
A
A

, 
C
P
) 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

k
ilo

g
ra

m
s 

o
f 

re
si

d
u
a
l 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

. 
R

e
si

d
u
a
l 
w

a
st

e
 i
n
cl

u
d
e
s 

a
n
y
 w

a
st

e
 s

e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
se

, 
re

cy
cl

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
st

in
g
 o

r 
a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 

d
ig

e
st

io
n
. 

It
s 

p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

e
a
su

re
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
ci

n
g
 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
st

e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 s

e
n
t 

to
 

la
n
d
fi
ll,

 i
n
ci

n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

r 
e
n
e
rg

y
 

re
co

v
e
ry

. 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
e
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 

 
7
6
2
 k

g
 

1
9
7
.6

k
g
 (

to
 J

u
n
e
) 

G
 

46



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 

%
 h

o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 

re
cy

cl
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
st

e
d
 

(N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
se

, 
re

cy
cl

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
st

in
g
 o

r 
a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 

d
ig

e
st

io
n
. 

It
s 

p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
w

a
st

e
 

th
a
t 

is
 r

e
u
se

d
, 

re
cy

cl
e
d
 o

r 
co

m
p
o
st

e
d
. 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
e
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 

3
0
.4

3
%

 
3
2
%

 
3
1
.1

2
%

 (
to

 J
u
n
e
) 

C
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

6
.3

2
%

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

sa
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r 

G
 

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
st

e
 l
a
n
d
 

fi
lle

d
 (

N
I)

 
T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 t
o
 

m
e
a
su

re
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
st

e
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

la
n
d
fi
lle

d
. 

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
st

e
 

e
n
co

m
p
a
ss

e
s 

a
ll 

w
a
st

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
o
ss

e
ss

io
n
 o

f 
o
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

ra
d
e
 

w
a
st

e
).

 I
ts

 p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 d

iv
e
rt

 a
n
 

in
cr

e
a
si

n
g
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

a
st

e
 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll.

 

D
a
ta

 i
s 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
e
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 

 
6
4
.9

2
%

 
6
6
.4

%
 (

to
 J

u
n
e
) 

G
 

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

w
it
h
 l
o
ca

l 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b
u
si

n
e
ss

 c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 

 
 

S
im

ila
r 

su
rv

e
y
s 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
rs

 

h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

A
 

47



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

(N
I)

 

o
f 

tr
a
d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s,
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 l
ic

e
n
si

n
g
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

re
a
te

d
 f

a
ir
ly

 
a
n
d
/o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

h
e
lp

fu
l.
 S

a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
e
a
su

re
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
n
s 

o
f 

a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 

b
o
th

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

a
n
d
 n

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s.

 I
ts

 p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

is
 e

n
fo

rc
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
to

w
a
rd

s 
h
a
v
in

g
 a

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

-f
ri
e
n
d
ly

 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 

B
a
se

lin
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
-

0
9
. 

Id
e
a
lly

 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 

p
re

ci
se

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

e
re

 
o
n
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

d
e
ci

d
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 (
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

a
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
) 

fo
r 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
, 

ch
a
n
g
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
se

q
u
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

. 

sa
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
. 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s 

a
re

 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 t

o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

se
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
ti
l 
d
a
ta

 u
si

n
g
 t

h
e
 

n
e
w

 s
u
rv

e
y
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

re
ce

iv
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

se
d
. 

48



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

Im
p
a
ct

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

re
g
u
la

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

o
n
 

th
e
 f

a
ir
 t

ra
d
in

g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

(N
I)

 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

is
su

e
s 

re
co

rd
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
n
su

m
e
r 

D
ir
e
ct

 w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 T

ra
d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 i
s 

ca
lle

d
 u

p
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
, 

le
ss

 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

it
 i
s 

a
ct

u
a
lly

 a
b
le

 t
o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
, 

sc
a
le

d
 a

g
a
in

st
 a

 m
e
a
su

re
 o

f 
tr

a
d
in

g
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
re

a
. 

T
h
is

 y
ie

ld
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

fi
g
u
re

 a
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
so

n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s.

 I
ts

 p
u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 m

e
a
su

re
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
a
ct

iv
it
y
 

to
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 f

a
ir
 

tr
a
d
in

g
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
su

m
e
rs

. 

B
a
se

lin
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
-

0
9
 

 
 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

ct
io

n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

co
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

A
 

F
o
o
d
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 a

re
a
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

b
ro

a
d
ly

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 

fo
o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 l
a
w

 (
N

I)
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 '
b
ro

a
d
ly

 
co

m
p
lia

n
t'
 w

it
h
 f

o
o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 l
a
w

 

(i
.e

. 
sc

o
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
in

 a
cc

e
p
ta

b
le

 l
im

it
s 

o
n
 s

ca
le

s 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 F

o
o
d
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s 
A

g
e
n
cy

).
 I

ts
 p

u
rp

o
se

 i
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 b

y
 e

n
su

ri
n
g
 

fo
o
d
 i
s 

sa
fe

 a
n
d
 f

it
 t

o
 e

a
t.

 T
h
is

 a
ls

o
 

a
ct

s 
a
s 

a
 p

ro
x
y
 m

e
a
su

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 f

o
o
d
 

 
 

In
sp

e
ct

io
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

ct
io

n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

co
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 
A
 

49



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

sa
fe

ty
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 

o
n
 f

o
o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

. 

D
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 b
y
 

th
e
 f

o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
a
g
e
n
cy

. 

B
a
se

lin
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
-

0
9
 

N
o
te
s
: 

N
I 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
L
A
A

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
cl

u
d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
ca

l 
A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

L
P
S
A

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
cl

u
d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
5
-0

8
 L

o
ca

l 
P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 

L
o
ca

l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
o
r 

fo
rm

e
r 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

C
P

 
C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 

R
 

N
o
t 

o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 n

o
t 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
ce

 
A

 
N

o
t 

o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 b
u
t 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
m

e
a
su

re
 i
n
 p

la
ce

; 
o
r 

n
o
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 b
u
t 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

G
 

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t;

 o
r 

b
a
se

lin
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 h

a
s 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
ce
 

 

50



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
d
 J
u
ly
 2

0
0
8
 (
D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 o
f 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 -
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 a
n
d
 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
) 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

N
e
t 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
H
o
m
e
s 

P
ro
v
id
e
d
 (
N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 n
e
t 

in
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 d
w
e
lli
n
g
 s
to
ck
 o
v
e
r 
o
n
e
 

y
e
a
r.
  
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
lle
ct
e
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 F
lo
w
s 
re
co
n
ci
lia
ti
o
n
 

8
0
5
 h
o
u
se
s 

(2
0
0
6
/0
7
) 

7
6
0
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s 

a
ss
e
m
b
le
d
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l 
y
e
a
r 
w
h
ic
h
 e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s 
M
a
rc
h
. 

(5
 Y
e
a
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
is
 3
9
6
4
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
2
) 

A
 

P
ro
ce
ss
in
g
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s 
(N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s 

b
y
 t
y
p
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 

m
a
n
n
e
r.
  
A
 t
im
e
ly
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
is
 d
e
fi
n
e
 

a
s:
  •

 
W
it
h
in
 1
3
 w
e
e
k
s 
fo
r 
M
a
jo
r 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s 

•
 
W
it
h
in
 8
 w
e
e
k
s 
fo
r 
M
in
o
r 

a
n
d
 O
th
e
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s 

T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
a
n
d
 

L
o
ca
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

b
a
si
s 

M
a
jo
r 
–
 6
8
%
 

M
in
o
r 
–
 8
0
%
 

O
th
e
r 
–
 8
9
%
 

M
a
jo
r 
–
 6
0
%
 

M
in
o
r 
–
 6
5
%
 

O
th
e
r 
–
 8
0
%
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 f
ig
u
re
s 
a
re
 

e
x
ce
e
d
in
g
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
. 
 T
h
e
re
 

h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
 m

a
rg
in
a
l 
fa
ll 
b
a
ck
 i
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 s
in
ce
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

st
a
ff
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
Ju
ly
 

•
 
M
a
jo
r 
6
3
%
 

•
 
M
in
o
r 
7
3
%
 

•
 
O
th
e
r 
8
5
%
 

 

G
 

S
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
re
a
d
y
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 s
it
e
s 

(N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
ss
e
ss
e
s 
th
e
 d
e
g
re
e
 

to
 w
h
ic
h
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s 
a
re
 m

a
in
ta
in
in
g
 

a
 5
 y
e
a
r 
su
p
p
ly
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 s
it
e
s.
  

4
1
6
7
 s
it
e
s 

(A
p
ri
l 
0
7
) 

3
4
6
0
 

T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

in
co
rp
o
ra
te
s 
th
e
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 L
a
n
d
 

A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s 
u
p
o
n
 

A
 

51



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

(N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
a
n
d
 L
o
ca
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
rm

 

a
n
 A
p
ri
l 
b
a
se
. 
 A
s 
a
t 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
, 

4
1
6
7
 s
it
e
s 
w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
si
n
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 

e
q
u
a
te
s 
to
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 a
 5
 y
e
a
r 

h
o
u
si
n
g
 l
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
ly
. 

P
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

la
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

v
a
ca
n
t 
o
r 
d
e
re
lic
t 
fo
r 

m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 f
iv
e
 y
e
a
rs
 

(N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

la
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
is
 v
a
ca
n
t 
o
r 
d
e
re
lic
t 
fo
r 

m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 5
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

E
n
g
lis
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s.
 

 
 

T
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

v
a
ca
n
t 
o
r 
d
e
re
lic
t 
fo
r 
o
v
e
r 
5
 Y
e
a
rs
 

is
 n
o
t 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

A
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

h
o
m
e
s 
b
u
ilt
 o
n
 

p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

la
n
d
 (
B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
  

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s 
th
a
t 
a
re
 

b
u
ilt
 o
n
 p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
s 
o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

in
im
is
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 g
re
e
n
 f
ie
ld
s.
 

7
7
%
 

(2
0
0
6
/0
7
) 

 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
e
x
ce
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
6
0
%
 s
in
ce
 

2
0
0
2
-3
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
a
st
 4
 y
e
a
rs
 h
a
s 

a
ch
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 U
n
it
a
ry
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
  
D
is
co
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

G
 

D
id
 t
h
e
 L
o
ca
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
 

L
o
ca
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

sc
h
e
m
e
 (
L
D
S
) 
b
y
 2
8
th
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
6
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 

a
ft
e
r 
m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 3
-y
e
a
r 

ro
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
?
 

(B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 T
h
is
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

co
u
n
ci
l 
p
la
n
 e
ff
e
ct
iv
e
ly
 f
o
r 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
su
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
ce
ss
e
s.
 

Y
e
s 

 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
se
ts
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
s 
it
s 

L
o
ca
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
ch
e
m
e
 (
L
D
S
) 

A
n
n
u
a
lly
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 

th
re
e
 y
e
a
r 
ro
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

fo
rw

a
rd
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
o
rk
. 
 T
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 

re
v
ie
w
 w
a
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
8
. 

G
 

52



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

H
a
s 
th
e
 L
o
ca
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 m

e
t 
th
e
 

m
ile
st
o
n
e
s 
th
a
t 
th
e
 

cu
rr
e
n
t 
L
o
ca
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
ch
e
m
e
 

(L
D
S
) 
se
ts
 o
u
t?
 (
B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 

Y
e
s 
(W

it
h
 

E
x
ce
p
ti
o
n
s)
 

 
A
ll 
d
o
cu
m
e
n
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

la
te
st
 L
o
ca
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
ch
e
m
e
 

a
re
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 m

ile
st
o
n
e
s 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 e
x
ce
p
ti
o
n
s:
- 

P
o
ly
tu
n
n
e
ls
 S
P
D
 –
 n
o
w
 e
x
p
e
ct
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
8
. 

H
is
to
ri
c 
L
a
n
d
sc
a
p
e
s 
S
P
D
 -
 D
ra
ft
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
. 

A
 

D
id
 t
h
e
 L
o
ca
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 p
u
b
lis
h
 a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

b
y
 3
1
st
 D
e
ce
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

la
st
 y
e
a
r?
 (
B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 

Y
e
s 

 
T
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 

Ja
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 

G
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
e
a
l 
d
e
ci
si
o
n
s 
a
llo
w
e
d
 

a
g
a
in
st
 t
h
e
 L
o
ca
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 d
e
ci
si
o
n
 t
o
 

re
fu
se
 o
n
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s,
 a
s 
a
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
e
a
ls
 a
g
a
in
st
 r
e
fu
sa
ls
 

o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s 

(B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
  

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 a
n
d
 

in
cl
u
d
e
s 
o
n
ly
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 o
n
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s 
w
h
e
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
e
rm

is
si
o
n
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
fu
se
d
. 
 I
t 

d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
in
cl
u
d
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 

a
g
a
in
st
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
o
r 
n
o
n
-

d
e
te
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s.
 

3
6
.4
%
 

 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 t
o
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Ju
ly
 3
6
.4
%
 

T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s 
3
4
%
 

 

A
 

53



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

T
h
e
 L
o
ca
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 

sc
o
re
 a
g
a
in
st
 a
 ‘
q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s’
 

ch
e
ck
lis
t 
(B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
  

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
a
s 
th
e
y
 s
ta
n
d
 

a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l 

y
e
a
r 

1
9
/2
1
 

 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
ca
n
n
o
t 
a
ch
ie
v
e
 a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
a
 q
u
a
lit
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

se
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
IT
 

fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
  
C
a
b
in
e
t 
h
a
s 
n
o
w
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
 p
a
ck
a
g
e
 o
f 
m
e
a
su
re
s 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 e
v
e
n
tu
a
lly
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
is
 

is
su
e
 

A
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 L
o
ca
l 

B
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 –
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 

o
f 
L
o
ca
l 
S
it
e
s 
w
h
e
re
 

p
o
si
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

o
r 
is
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

(N
I,
 L
A
A
, 
C
P
) 

T
h
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
L
o
ca
l 
S
it
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 

lo
ca
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 w
h
e
re
 p
o
si
ti
v
e
 

co
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s 

ta
k
e
n
 p
la
ce
 u
p
 t
o
 f
iv
e
 y
e
a
rs
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 

th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
a
te
 (
3
1
st
 M
a
rc
h
) 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 

B
a
se
lin
e
 =
 

2
8
.7
%
 

In
cr
e
a
se
 o
f 

3
.5
%
 (
i.
e
. 

3
0
 s
it
e
s)
 

P
o
si
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

is
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 a
s 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 t
h
o
se
 

si
te
s 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

sc
h
e
m
e
s 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 

G
ra
n
t 
S
ch
e
m
e
, 
E
n
g
lis
h
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 

G
ra
n
t 
S
ch
e
m
e
, 
C
o
u
n
tr
y
si
d
e
 

S
te
w
a
rd
sh
ip
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
te
w
a
rd
sh
ip
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
; 
a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 

d
e
si
g
n
a
te
d
 S
it
e
s 
o
f 
S
p
e
ci
a
l 

S
ci
e
n
ti
fi
c 
In
te
re
st
 a
n
d
 L
o
ca
l 
N
a
tu
re
 

R
e
se
rv
e
s 
(c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 1
0
9
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
);
 a
n
d
 l
o
ca
l 
si
te
s 
w
it
h
 

o
th
e
r 
sp
e
ci
fi
c 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s,
 

e
.g
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
m
m
o
n
s 
P
ro
je
ct
, 

P
o
n
d
 R
e
st
o
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
e
le
b
ra
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
je
ct
 a
n
d
 E
a
rt
h
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 T
ru
st
. 

A
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

co
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
s 
in
 t
h
e
 

L
o
ca
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
re
a
 w
it
h
 

a
n
 u
p
-t
o
 d
a
te
 c
h
a
ra
ct
e
r 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 
B
V
P
I 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
o
n
it
o
rs
 w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
ci
si
o
n
s 
a
re
 

b
a
se
d
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 

2
3
.4
%
 

 
D
ra
ft
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 s
ta
tu
s 
ca
n
 b
e
 

a
tt
a
in
e
d
. 
 N
o
 p
la
n
s 
to
 r
o
ll 

A
 

54



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
(B
V
P
I)
 

b
a
se
d
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
ci
a
l 

ch
a
ra
ct
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 l
o
ca
l 
h
is
to
ri
c 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
th
e
 

co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
it
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s.
 

 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 o
u
t 
a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
 

A
cc
e
ss
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 

fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
b
y
 p
u
b
lic
 

tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
, 
w
a
lk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

cy
cl
in
g
 (
N
I,
 C
P
) 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
a
cc
e
ss
 t
o
 

se
le
ct
e
d
 c
o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
ci
lit
ie
s 

b
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 v
ia
 n
o
n
-p
ri
v
a
te
 

m
o
d
e
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 
  

T
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 w
ill
 

co
lle
ct
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 

9
1
%
 

9
1
%
 

T
h
is
 a
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 i
n
 a
 l
a
rg
e
 

ru
ra
l 
co
u
n
ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 

in
cr
e
a
si
n
g
 c
o
st
s 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

a
t 
th
e
 9
1
%
 b
a
se
lin
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

G
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

a
cc
e
ss
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 

p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 (
a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
sp
e
ci
fi
e
d
 m

o
d
e
s)
 

(N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

a
g
e
 (
a
g
e
d
 1
6
-7
4
 y
e
a
rs
) 
liv
in
g
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 o
f 
a
 

lo
ca
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 5
0
0
 j
o
b
s 

b
y
 p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
, 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 

re
sp
o
n
si
v
e
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 a
n
d
 /
 o
r 

w
a
lk
in
g
. 

T
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 w
ill
 

co
lle
ct
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 

 
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 n
e
w
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
th
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 

b
e
 s
e
t 

G
 

55



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

L
o
ca
l 
B
u
s 
P
a
ss
e
n
g
e
r 

jo
u
rn
e
y
s 
o
ri
g
in
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 (
N
I,
 

B
V
P
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
lo
ca
l 
b
u
s 
p
a
ss
e
n
g
e
r 

jo
u
rn
e
y
s 
o
ri
g
in
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 i
n
 a
 g
iv
e
n
 y
e
a
r.
 

T
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 w
ill
 

co
lle
ct
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 

3
.3
5
5
 M
 

4
.0
1
7
 M
 

S
e
e
k
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
v
is
e
 t
h
is
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
 

d
is
cu
ss
io
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
O
W
M
. 
 T
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e
 w
a
s 
e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
3
/2
0
0
4
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
d
 a
n
 u
n
u
su
a
lly
 

h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
u
sa
g
e
. 
  

A
 

B
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
ru
n
n
in
g
 o
n
 

ti
m
e
 (
N
I,
 L
A
A
, 
C
P
) 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 m

e
a
su
re
d
 i
n
 t
w
o
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
w
a
y
s:
  
th
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

n
o
n
-f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
b
u
se
s 
o
n
 t
im
e
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 e
x
ce
ss
 w
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
s.
 

T
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 w
ill
 

co
lle
ct
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 

6
7
%
 

6
9
%
 

T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 

h
a
s 
ch
a
n
g
e
d
 t
h
e
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

p
re
v
io
u
s 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
se
lin
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 h
is
to
ri
c 
d
a
ta
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
n
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 s
e
t.
 

G
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 t
ra
v
e
lli
n
g
 t
o
 

sc
h
o
o
l 
–
 m

o
d
e
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 

u
su
a
lly
 u
se
d
 –
 C
a
r,
 C
a
r 

S
h
a
re
, 
S
ch
o
o
l 
/ 
P
u
b
lic
 

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
, 
W
a
lk
, 
C
y
cl
e
 

(N
I)
 

T
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
sc
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

in
 f
u
ll 
ti
m
e
 e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 t
ra
v
e
lli
n
g
 t
o
 

sc
h
o
o
l 
b
y
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
th
a
t 

th
e
y
 u
su
a
lly
 u
se
 a
n
d
 i
s 
b
ro
k
e
n
 

d
o
w
n
 b
y
 s
p
e
ci
fi
c 
m
o
d
e
s 
o
f 

tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

D
a
ta
 p
ro
ce
ss
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 

D
fE
S
. 
 T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s 
re
ce
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

co
u
n
ci
l 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
fr
o
m
 

3
3
.7
%
 

3
4
.0
%
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
m
o
d
e
s 
o
f 

tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r,
 t
h
e
 

m
a
in
 i
ss
u
e
 i
s 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
 i
n
 c
a
r 

u
se
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
g
re
ss
 i
s 

m
e
a
su
re
d
 a
g
a
in
st
 t
h
is
. 

G
 

56



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B

 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

In
d
ic
a
to

r 
C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s 
a
ca
d
e
m
ic
 y
e
a
r.
 

N
o
te

s
: 

N
I 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

L
A
A
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
cl
u
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
o
ca
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

L
P
S
A
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
cl
u
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
5
-0
8
 L
o
ca
l 
P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 

L
o
ca
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
r 
fo
rm

e
r 
B
e
st
 V
a
lu
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
r 

C
P
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

R
 

N
o
t 
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 n
o
t 
ta
k
in
g
 p
la
ce
 

A
 

N
o
t 
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 b
u
t 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
e
d
ia
l 
m
e
a
su
re
 i
n
 p
la
ce
; 
o
r 
n
o
 d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
u
t 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

G
 

O
n
 t
a
rg
e
t;
 o
r 
b
a
se
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 i
s 
n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
a
 n
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 h
a
s 
ta
k
e
n
 p
la
ce

 

 

57



58



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Paul James 
 Democratic Services Officer, tel 01432 260460 

 

 

ScrutinyReviewofPlanningServicesreport0.doc  

 SCRUTINY REVIEW OF PLANNING SERVICES - 
UPDATE 

Report By: Councillor P A Andrews, Chairman, Planning 
Services Scrutiny Review Group 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To seek an extension of time to report on the findings of the Scrutiny Review. 

Background 

2. At its meeting on 9th June 2008 the Committee approved the terms of reference and 
appointeed Members to a Scrutiny Review of Planning Services.  Since then members of 
the Review Group have held a number of meetings and received or heard a range 
evidence on the subject.   

3. Due to the breadth of the subject, the Review Group will be unable to meet the intended 
target namely to report its findings to the 24th November 2008 meeitng of this 
Committee.  It is therefore requested that the reporting date be extended to early 2009 
so that a considered set of recommendations can be formulated. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the review period be extended to early 2009. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

59



60



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15 SEPTEMBER 2008 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Paul James,  
Democratic Services Officer on 01432 260460 

 

 

 ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Report By: Assistant Chief Executive - Legal and Democratic  

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1 To consider the Committee work programme. 

Financial Implications 

2 None  

Background 

3 In accordance with the Scrutiny Improvement Plan a report on the Committee’s 
current Work Programme will be made to each of the scheduled quarterly meetings 
of this Scrutiny Committee.  A copy of the suggested Work Programme is attached at 
appendix 1. 

4 The programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the 
Vice-Chairman and the relevant Director in response to changing circumstances.  

5 A number of other possible issues for consideration have been logged and 
depending on the Committee’s future instruction may be added to the programme as 
it is further developed.  The issues are listed at the foot of the programme. 

6 Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider 
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

7 Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact either the Director of Environment and 
Culture, the Director of Regeneration or the Democratic Services Officer to log the 
issue so that it may be taken into consideration when planning future agendas or 
when revising the work programme. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to 
Strategic Monitoring Committee. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

61



62



 
ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME – TO 15 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
 
 

 

 9.30am Monday 24 November 2008 

 • Service Delivery Review – update. 

• Capital Budget Monitoring 

• Revenue Budget Monitoring 

• Report on Performance Indicators 

• Committee Work Programme 

 • On-Street Parking Review 

• Planning Services Review. 

9.30am Monday 23 March 2008 

 • Capital Budget Monitoring 

• Revenue Budget Monitoring 

• Report on Performance Indicators 

• Committee Work Programme 

 
 
Items for consideration as the programme is further developed: 

 

• Scrutinising progress with the Local Transport Plan (LTP2) and any associated issues. 

• The effect on Herefordshire of changes to the Single Farm Payments system (e.g. 
hedge cutting, drainage ditch clearance) 

• Any specific issues arising from Council Strategies or Plans. 

• Contribute to policy development of LTP3. 

• Consideration of revised/reviewed Flood Defence Policy. 

• Safety on the A49 and A465 trunk roads – the Director will update the Committee as 
appropriate. 

63



64


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 Environment Strategy and Carbon Management Performance
	Env Strategy Report 0708 - Appendix 1
	Env Strategy emissions summary aug15  Appendix 2

	7 Environment: Performance for the Four-Month Period to July 2008
	performance table - July (2) Appendix A
	performance table Regeneration - July Appendix B

	8 Scrutiny Review of Planning Services - Update
	9 Environment Committee Work Programme
	Environment WorkProgrammeAp1to 15 Sept 2008


